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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS OF

THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
For the year ended June 30, 2018

The Board of Directors of HBL Asset Management Limited is pleased to present its report together with Financial Statements
of HBL Income Fund, HBL Government Securities Fund, HBL Money Market Fund, HBL Cash Fund, HBL Stock Fund, HBL Equity
Fund, HBL Energy Fund, HBL Multi Asset Fund and HBL Financial Planning Fund (the Funds) for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Economic Review

Pakistan’s economy sustained its growth trajectory in FY18 with substantial increase in aggregate demand leading to higher
external account risks. The challenges faced by the economy largely remained un-mitigated in midst of higher international oil
prices which aggravated current account deficit recently (mainly in 4QFY18). More recent policy steps (PKR depreciation,
interest rate increase and imposition of duty on import products) would likely yield some results while we foresee
continuation of stringent policy measures in FY19 as well.

GDP growth remained impressive at 5.8% in FY18 compared to 5.4% in the year before and the growth rate was the highest
in the past 13 years. Key factors behind the higher GDP growth rate was a turnaround in the agricultural sector, which posted
3.8% growth vs. just 2.1% growth in the previous year; meanwhile, industrial growth came in at 5.8% and services sector
posted growth of 6.4%. Large-scale manufacturing (LSM) posted 6b.0% YoY growth during 11MFY18 mainly led by Electronics
(+36.0%), Iron & Steel Products (+22.0%), Automobiles (+18.0%) and Non-metallic Mineral Products (+11.9%). Average
Inflation during FY18 was muted at 3.92%. However, inflation picked up at the end of year as head line inflation and core
inflation was recorded at 5.2% and 7.1% respectively for the month of Jun-18. This uptick in inflation was due to higher
international oil prices and three rounds of rupee deprecation. PKR depreciated by 5.0% against US dollar during Jun-18,
taking cumulative FY18 PKR depreciation to 16.0%.

The fiscal deficit exhibited a deterioration in 9MFY18 where the fiscal deficit-to-GDP ratio rose to 4.3% from 3.9%. During the
year, faster economic growth caused imbalances on the external front with FY18 current account deficit soaring to USD 18.0bn
(5.7% of GDP) compared to USD 12.6bn (4.1% of GDP) in FY17. In FY18, import of goods and services surged by 14.7% YoY to
USD 66.2bn while exports grew by 12.6% to USD 30.0bn resulting in a trade deficit of USD 36.2bn vs USD 31bn during FY17.
Remittances showed a nominal increase of 1.4% to USD 19.6bn due to decline in remittances from the Middle East countries.
As a result, SBP forex reserves decreased by USD 6.4bn since Jun-17 to reach USD 9.8bn at the end of FY18.

Going forward, continuation of stringent policy measures is expected with focus towards monetary and fiscal tightening and
import curtailment as external account risks remain high.

Money Market Review

During the year the Interest rate cycle started its reversal as central bank focus diverted towards containing rising twin deficits
rising inflation due to lack of fiscal discipline in election times. During the year, secondary market yields of 3, 5 and 10-year
PIBs increased by 180, 171 and 86 bps respectively while yields of 3, 6 and 12 month T-Bills increased by 79, 90 and 116 bps
respectively. Government of Pakistan raised only PKR 96bn through the PIB auction against a target of PKR 900bn as eight PIB
auctions were scrapped in the year due to lack of interest. The last cut-off yields stood at 7.5000%, 8.4795% and 8.6999% p.a.
for 3, 5 and 10-year PIBs respectively. Overall trading in longer tenors remained lackluster due to market participants’
consensus of increase in interest rates.

During FY18, Government retired PKR 77bn from scheduled banks against borrowing of PKR 179bn during same period last
year due to multiple scrapped PIB Auctions. Meanwhile, Government borrowing from SBP increased by PKR 1,439bn during
the period against PKR 908bn during same period last year. Government largely managed its borrowing requirements through
domestic sources and raised PKR 16,894bn via T-bills (excluding NCB) compared to the cumulative target of PKR 16,925bn and
maturities of PKR 15,971bn.

SBP increased the policy rate by 25bps in January and a further 50bps in May to 6.50% to control aggregate demand and the
current account deficit. Since then the SBP has further increased policy rate by 100bps in Jul-18 MPS. Going forward, we
foresee another interest rate hike of 50bps in the calendar year on the back of increasing inflation expectation and
sustainability of current account risks.

Stock Market Review

Pakistan Equities witnessed a topsy-turvy ride during FY18 underlined by disappointing foreign flows (after MSCI upgrade),
political uncertainty following the ouster of ex-PM, macroeconomic challenges and speculations relating to recently
concluded general elections.

KSE100 Index shed 4,654 points during the fiscal year to close at 41,911 points, reflecting a decline of 10%. Despite market
expectation of strong foreign inflows following Pakistan’s inclusion in the MSCI Emerging Markets, foreign investors continued
to remain net sellers and sold stocks worth USD289mn. Within local investors, insurance companies and corporates bought
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equities of USD204mn and USD100mn respectively while Mutual funds divested equities of USD35mn during the year. On the
political front, Ex-Prime Minister Nawaz Sharif was disqualified by Supreme Court in Jul-17 which further marred investor
sentiment. Moreover, economic concerns increased due to rising twin deficits followed by stringent policy measures by the
government (16% PKR depreciation and 75bps increase in interest rates).

The Cement and Banking sector led the rout in the benchmark index, causing attrition of 2,288 points and 1,083 points
respectively. The decline in cements was caused by the fears of a price war in the sector as upcoming expansions could lead
to an oversupply situation particularly in the Southern region. Investor sentiment was reflected in poor price performance of
DGKC and LUCK which fell 44% and 37% YoY respectively. In the banking sector, large banks caused underperformance where
HBL, UBL and NBP fell 37%, 23% and 20% owing to regulatory concerns, pension provisions and other legal issues. Meanwhile
mid-tier banks outperformed the index buoyed by rising interest rate environment which is expected to lead to margin
expansion.

Oil & Gas Exploration and Production sector defied overall trend during FY18 and posted strong gains. The sector contributed
1,628 points to the market owing to 66% increase in International Oil Prices and 16% PKR depreciation. The outperformance
was led by POL and PPL posting returns of 58% and 53% against SPLY.

Going forward, Pakistan equities are expected to rebound with restoration of political stability (after General Elections),
gradual improvement in macroeconomic trends and potential revival of foreign investor interest after steep PKR depreciation.

FUND’S PERFORMANCE AND PAYOUTS

HBL Income Fund

The total income and net income of the Fund was Rs. 265.31 million and Rs. 186.50 million respectively during the year ended
June 30, 2018. The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit of the Fund was Rs. 106.0146 per unit as on June 30, 2017 which increased
to Rs. 111.2890 per unit as on June 30, 2018 thereby giving an annualized return of 4.98%. During the year the benchmark (6
Month KIBOR) return was 6.35%. The size of Fund was Rs. 2.46 billion as on June 30, 2018 as compared to Rs. 4.49 billion at
the start of the year.

The Board of Directors approved final cash distribution of Rs. 5.50 per unit to the unit holders for the year ended June 30,
2018.

JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company Limited has reaffirmed A(f) Fund Stability Rating to the Fund.

HBL Government Securities Fund

The total income and net income of the Fund was Rs. 45.25 million and Rs. 30.66 million respectively during the year ended
June 30, 2018. The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit of the Fund was Rs. 105.4266 per unit as on June 30, 2017 which increased
to Rs. 110.4244 per unit as on June 30, 2018, thereby giving an annualized return of 4.74%. During the same year the
benchmark (6 Month PKRV Rates) return was 6.20%.The size of Fund was Rs. 314 million as on June 30, 2018 as compared to
Rs. 1.37 billion at the start of the year.

The Board of Directors approved final cash distribution of Rs 4.75 per unit to the unit holders for the year ended June 30, 2018.
JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company Limited has reaffirmed A+(f) Fund Stability Rating to the Fund.

HBL Money Market Fund

The total income and net income of the Fund was Rs. 358.99 million and Rs. 282.70 million respectively during the year ended
June 30, 2018. The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit of the Fund was Rs. 101.7683 per unit as on June 30, 2017 which increased
to Rs. 107.1869 per unit as on June 30, 2018, thereby giving an annualized return of 5.32%. During the year the benchmark
(70% 3M PKRV & 30% 3M deposit rates) return was 5.35%.The size of Fund was Rs. 7.25 billion as on June 30, 2018 as
compared to Rs. 3.94 billion at the start of the year.

The Board of Directors approved final cash distribution of Rs. 5.15 per unit to the unit holders for the year ended June 30,
2018.

JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company Limited has reaffirmed AA(f) Fund Stability Rating to the Fund.
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HBL Cash Fund

The total income and net income of the Fund was Rs. 668.63 million and Rs. 566.77 million respectively during the year
ended June 30, 2018. The ex-dividend Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit of the Fund was Rs 100.4888 per unit as on June 30,
2017. The NAV of the Fund was Rs 106.0021 per unit as on June 30, 2018, thereby giving an annualized return of 5.49%. During
the year the benchmark (70% 3M PKRV & 30% 3M deposit rates) return was 5.35%.The size of Fund was Rs 12.04 billion as on
June 30, 2018 as compared to Rs. 5.95 billion at the start of the year.

The Board of Directors approved final cash distribution of Rs 5.25 per unit to the unit holders for the year ended June 30, 2018.
JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company Limited has reaffirmed AA(f) Fund Stability Rating to the Fund.

HBL Stock Fund

The Fund earned and incurred a total income and net loss of Rs. 202.32 million and Rs. 282.03 million respectively during the
year ended June 30, 2018. The ex-dividend Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit of the Fund was Rs 121.4498 per unit as on June
30, 2017. The NAV of the Fund was Rs 107.0620 per unit as on June 30, 2018, thereby giving a negative return of 11.85%.
During the same year the benchmark KSE 30 index yielded a negative return of 10.03%.The size of Fund was Rs 5.96 billion as
on June 30, 2018 as compared to Rs. 6.35 billion at the start of the year.

The Board of Directors approved NIL distribution to the unit holders for the year ended June 30, 2018.

HBL Equity Fund

The Fund incurred a total and net loss of Rs. 35.13 million and Rs. 47.93 million respectively during the year ended June 30,
2018. The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit of the Fund was Rs. 124.6444 per unit as on June 30, 2017. The NAV of the Fund was
Rs. 110.4602 per unit as on June 30, 2018, thereby giving a negative return of 11.38%. During the year the benchmark KSE 100
index yielded a negative return of 10.00%.The size of Fund was Rs. 0.29 billion as on June 30, 2018 as compared to Rs. 0.47
billion at the start of the year.

The Board of Directors approved NIL distribution to the unit holders for the year ended June 30, 2018.

HBL Energy Fund

The Fund earned and incurred a total income and net loss of Rs. 24.63 million and Rs. 9.15 million respectively during the year
ended June 30, 2018. The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit of the Fund was Rs. 15.0359 per unit as on June 30, 2017. The NAV
of the Fund was Rs. 14.6857 per unit as on June 30, 2018, thereby giving a negative return of 2.33%. During the same year the
benchmark KSE 30 index yielded a negative return of 10.03%.The size of Fund was Rs. 1.06 billion as on June 30, 2018 as
compared to Rs. 0.79 billion at the start of the year.

The Board of Directors approved NIL distribution to the unit holders for the year ended June 30, 2018.

HBL Multi Asset Fund

The Fund incurred a total and net loss of Rs. 15.97 million and Rs. 41.66 million respectively during the year ended June 30,
2018. The ex-dividend Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit of the Fund was Rs 112.0924 per unit as on June 30, 2017. The NAV of
the Fund was Rs 105.0519 per unit as on June 30, 2018, thereby giving a negative return of 6.28%. During the same year the
benchmark index (Weighted average daily return KSE 100 and 6 Month PKRV rates) yielded a negative return of 4.08%. The
size of Fund was Rs 0.32 billion as on June 30, 2018 as compared to Rs. 0.97 billion at the start of the year.

The Board of Directors approved NIL distribution to the unit holders for the year ended June 30, 2018.

HBL Financial Planning Fund

HBL Financial Planning Fund commenced its operations from October 11, 2017. The Fund comprises of three sub funds (plans)
namely Active allocation plan, Conservative allocation plan and Strategic allocation plan.

The Fund as a whole earned total and net income of Rs. 19.98 million and Rs. 16.72 million respectively during the period
under review. The fund size of the fund stood at Rs. 0.67 billion as on June 30, 2018.
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Performance review for plans is given below:

Active Allocation Plan

During the period under review, the Active allocation plan earned total and net income of Rs. 6.60 million and Rs 5.42 million
respectively. The net assets of the Active allocation plan stood at Rs. 0.33 billion representing Net Asset Value (NAV) of Rs.
102.6500 per unit as at June 30, 2018. The plan earned a return of 2.65% for the period under review. The plan is invested to
the extent of 59% in equity funds & 39% in fixed income funds.

The Board of Directors approved NIL distribution to the unit holders for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Conservative Allocation Plan

During the period under review, the Conservative allocation plan earned total and net income of Rs. 6.98 million and Rs 6.16
million respectively. The net assets of the Conservative allocation plan stood at Rs. 0.13 billion representing Net Asset Value
(NAV) of Rs. 103.7607 per unit as at June 30, 2018. The plan earned a return of 3.76% for the period under review. The plan
is invested to the extent of 20% in equity funds & 79% in fixed income funds.

The Board of Directors approved NIL distribution to the unit holders for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Strategic Allocation Plan

During the period under review, the Strategic allocation plan earned total and net income of Rs. 6.40 million and Rs 5.13
million respectively. The net assets of the Strategic allocation plan stood at Rs. 0.21 billion representing Net Asset Value (NAV)
of Rs. 102.5230 per unit as at June 30, 2018. The plan earned a return of 2.52% for the period under review. The plan is
invested to the extent of 49% in equity funds & 50% in fixed income funds.

The Board of Directors approved NIL distribution to the unit holders for the year ended June 30, 2018.

MANAGEMENT COMPANY RATING

The JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (JCR-VIS) has upgraded the management quality rating to ‘AM2+" (AM Two Plus)
to the Management Company and the outlook on the assigned rating has been assessed as ‘Stable’.

AUDITORS

M/s Deloitte Yousuf Adil, Chartered Accountants existing auditors of HBL Income Fund, HBL Government Securities Fund, HBL
Money Market Fund, HBL Cash Fund, HBL Stock Fund, HBL Equity Fund, HBL Energy Fund, HBL Multi Asset Fund and HBL
Financial Planning Fund retired and being eligible, offered themselves for re-appointment. The Board of Directors would
consider the matter of the appointment of auditors in due course of time.

PATTERN OF UNIT HOLDING

The details regarding the pattern of unit holding are provided in the respective financial statements of the Funds. Breakup of
unit holding by size is provided in the relevant section of the Fund Manager Report of the respective Funds.

Acknowledgement
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FUND INFORMATION

NAME OF FUND

NAME OF AUDITOR

NAME OF TRUSTEE

NAME OF BANKERS

FUND RATING

IHBL Money Market Fund

Deloitte Yousuf Adil Chartered Accountants

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Habib Bank Limited

Bank Al-Habib Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
Bank Al Falah Limited

Faysal Bank Limited

Allied Bank Limited

Meezan Bank Limited

Askari Bank Limited

Samba Bank Limtied

Zarai Taraqgiati Bank Limited
United Bank Limited

Sindh Bank Limited

JS Bank Limited

AA(f) (JCR-VIS)

Annual Report-2018



FUND MANAGER'’S REPORT —

As at June 30, 2018

Type and Category of Fund
Open end Money Market Fund
Investment Objective and Accomplishment of Objective

The investment objective of the Fund is to seek high liquidity and competitive return for investors by investing in low risk
securities of shorter duration and maturity. The investment objective is achieved.

Benchmark and Performance Comparison with Benchmark
The Fund’s benchmark is 70% 3 — Month PKRV + 30% 3 — Month Deposit Rate of 3 AA and above rated Banks as per MUFAP.

The comparison of the fund return with benchmark is given below:

Month =T @ Benchmark
Fund 6.10%
_1 0, 0,
Jun-18 5.88% 5.91% 5 0%
May-18 5.37% 5.45%
5. 70%
Apr-18 5.37% 5.54%
Mar-18 5.24% 5.48% | ~7"
Feb-18 5.07% 5.38% | =-30% l
Jan-18 6.02% 5.22% | 5.10%
Dec-17 4.87% 5.22% A.90%
Nov-17 .789 199
4.78% 5.19% 570
Oct-17 5.00% 5.16%
Sep-17 4.89% 5.17% o0
P 077 Sl Jul- Aug- Sep- Oct- Nov- Dec- Jan- Feb- Mar- Apr- May- Jun-
Aug-17 4.91% 5.17% 17 17 17 17 17 17 18 18 18 1B 18 18
Jul-17 5.43% 5.19% o B UMM OF FUND s Benichimark:

Strategies and Policies employed during the Period

In line with the investment policy of the Fund, the Fund continued to hold major investments in the form of short maturity
T-Bills and placements with Commercial Banks and DFls in Daily Product Accounts, TDRs and LOPs. However on quarter and
year end, better opportunities were offered in Placements which were utilized to optimize Fund returns.

Asset Allocation

Significant Changes in Asset Allocation during the Year

During every quarter end, the fund aggressively offload T-Bill inventory and took exposure in bank deposits owing to highly
attractive rates on account of quarter/year ends. At the end of the period, 92.91% assets were deployed in Cash at bank and
remaining 6.83% were deployed as placement with banks as they were offering 60 to 70 bps above T-Bill yield.
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Fund Performance

The total income and net income of the Fund was Rs. 358.99 million and Rs. 282.70 million respectively during the year ended
June 30, 2018. The ex-dividend Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit of the Fund was Rs. 101.7683 per unit as on June 30, 2017. The
NAV of the Fund was Rs. 107.1869 per unit as on June 30, 2018, thereby giving an annualized return of 5.32%. During the same
year the benchmark (70% 3M PKRV & 30% 3M deposit rates) return was 5.35%.The size of Fund was Rs. 7.25 billion as on June
30, 2018.

Market Review

Interest rate cycle reversed in FY18 as central bank focus diverted towards containing rising twin deficits and in anticipation of
increase in inflation due to lack of fiscal discipline in election times. During the year, secondary market yields of 3, 5 and
10-year PIBs increased by 180, 171 and 86 bps respectively while yields of 3, 6 and 12 month T-Bills increased by 79, 90 and
116 bps respectively. Government of Pakistan raised only PKR 96bn through the PIB auction against a target of PKR 900bn as
eight PIB auctions were scrapped in the year due to lack of interest. The last cut-off yields stood at 7.5000%, 8.4795% and
8.6999% p.a. for 3, 5 and 10-year PIBs respectively. Overall trading in longer tenures remained lackluster due to market
participants’ consensus of increase in interest rates.

During FY18, Government retired PKR 77bn from scheduled banks against borrowing of PKR 179bn during same period last
year due to multiple scrapped PIB Auctions. Meanwhile, Government borrowing from SBP increased by PKR 1,439bn during
the period against PKR 908bn during same period last year. Government largely managed its borrowing requirements through
domestic sources, and raised PKR 16,894bn via T-bills (excluding NCB) compared to the cumulative target of PKR 16,925bn and
maturities of PKR 15,971bn. In the last T-Bill Auction held in Jun-18 no amount was accepted in the 6 and 12 month T-Bills. The
cutoff yield was 6.7596% for the 3 month T-Bills. SBP increased the policy rate by 25bps in January and a further 50bps in May
to 6.50% to control aggregate demand and the current account deficit. Since then the SBP has further increased policy rate by
100bps in Jul-18 MPS. Going forward, we foresee another interest rate hike of 50bps in the calendar year on the back of
increasing inflation expectation and sustainability of current account risks.

Distribution

Subsequent to the year end, the Fund has distributed cash dividend upto Rs. 5.15 per unit for the year ended June 30, 2018,
which reduced the cum-NAV of the Fund as of June 30, 2018 by amount of distribution to Rs. 102.0369 per unit.

Significant Changes in the State of Affairs
There were no significant changes in the state of affairs during the year under review.

Breakdown of Unit Holding by Size

From —To Number of Unit Holders Total Number of Units Held
(Number of units)
1-100 1,006 17,160
101 -500 119 25,971
501 -1,000 39 29,368
1,001 - 10,000 345 1,837,664
10,001 - 100,000 448 16,035,482
100,001 - 500,000 54 11,161,704
500,001 - 1,000,000 5 3,753,383
1,000,001 - 5,000,000 7 21,088,417
5,000001 and more 2 13,685,049
Total 2,025 67,634,199
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Unit Splits

There were no unit splits during the year.

Circumstances materially affecting the Interest of Unit Holders
Investments are subject to market risk.

Soft Commission

The Management Company from time to time receives research reports and presentations from brokerage houses.
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PERFORMANCE TABLE -

HBL MONEY MARKET FUND
As at June 30, 2018

For the For the For the For the For the For the
period period period period period period
ended ended ended ended ended ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
NET ASSETS AND PRICES
Net assets at the period end(Rs'000) 7,249,502 3,942,010 3,522,715 5,081,207 9,777,546 10,381,264
Net asset value per unit at the period end/period end(Rs) 107.1869 101.7683 101.5468 101.1823 100.4122 101.2604
Selling price/repurchasing price 107.1869 101.7683 101.5468 101.1823 100.4122 101.2604
Earning per unit(Rs) (note 3.10)
Highest selling price per unit(Rs) 107.1869 107.6259 106.2966 108.2936 101.0903 102.8147
Lowest selling price per unit(Rs) 101.8380 101.5871 101.1538 100.5311 100.2636 100.3569
Highest repurchase price per unit(Rs) 107.1869 107.6259 106.2966 108.2936 101.0903 102.8147
Lowest repurchasing price per unit(Rs) 101.8380 101.5871 101.1538 100.5311 100.2636 100.3569
RETURN (% )
Total return 5.32% 6.45% 5.13% 8.79% 8.08% 9.28%
Income distribution 5.15% 6.30% 5.15% 7.97% 7.59% 8.89%
Capital growth 0.17% 0.15% -0.02% 0.82% 0.49% 0.39%
DISTRIBUTION
First Interin dividend distribution - - - 0.54 2.4
Second Interin dividend distribution - - - 0.54 0.76
Third Interin dividend distribution - - - 0.54 0.72
Fourth Interin dividend distribution - - - 0.57 0.78
Fifth Interin dividend distribution - - - 0.61 0.68
Sixth Interin dividend distribution - - - 0.73 0.59
Seventh Interin dividend distribution - - - 0.73 0.64
Eighth Interin dividend distribution - - - 0.65 0.61
Ninth Interin dividend distribution - - - 0.77 0.62
Tenth Interin dividend distribution - - - 0.67 -
Eleven Interin dividend distribution - - - 0.64 -
Twelve Interin dividend distribution - - - 0.60 -
Final dividend distributation 5.15 6.30 4.80 8.00 - 1.1
Total dividend distribution for the year/ period 5.15 6.30 4.80 8.00 7.59 8.9
AVERAGE RETURNS ( % )
Average annual return 1 year 5.32% 6.45% 5.13% 8.79% 8.08% 9.28%
Average annual return 2 year 5.89% 5.79% 6.96% 8.44% 8.08% 10.41%
Average annual return 3 year 5.64% 6.79% 7.33% 8.44% 8.08% 10.89%
Weighted average portfolio during (No. of days) 3 19 13 16 66 12.10%
Portfolio Composition- (%)
Percentage of Total Assets as at 30 June:
Bank Balances 92.91% 87.65%
Placement with banks & DFIs 6.83% 9.40%
Government Securities 0.00% 0.00%
Commercial Paper 0.00% 2.41%
Others including Receivables 0.26% 0.54%

Disclaimer:

Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and unit prices
and investment returns may go down, as well as up.

Annual Report-2018




CENTIAL DEPCSITORY COMFANY
OF PREIET AN LIMITED

Fmaal Difice;

COC Holome. gl Bk 1y,
AN Main Shakma--Fansl
Eargrhl - 2eefill, Pakigizsn,

Teke p7-T0} LEL-011-500

Fawn 193211 BaEhEiDN - 33

LML wevoyr cdconkiztan.cmin
Emai indooorpad conm

Y @)

TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS
HBL MONEY MARKET FUND

Report of the Troxee pursuant to Regulation 41(k) ond Clause % of Schedule ¥ of the Nan-
Hanking Finance Companies jod MNotlfed Entlties Begnlation, 1008

We, Ceptral Doeposiiory Company of Pakistan Lintted, bomy the Tristes of HEL Méney Market
Fund (the Fund) nre of the ppimion thar HEL Asset Monapmment |_mited, bemp the Managemeni
Compary of the Fund bas m all mnieral sespoets mnisged e Fund dueing the yeur ended Tuie
20, 2008 m secordinee wdth the provasfens of the following:

ik I imithtra imposed on e imvestment prwers of the Manogerent Company undarthie
cowpadfiotive decuments of the Fund;

thy  The premg, remance and redempiion ol units sre corrlod our in sceomtance with the
peginremmartd of ihe consindive doomens of e Fuod; el

{in}  The Mom-Banking Finance Compames (Estahlinhmeny pnd Regubunone) Rules, 2065,
the Mony-Bunkeug Finainee Companien and Motfied Entlthen Wepulatione. 2008 und the
gumairiive dogumentn of the Fuend

fﬁﬂm-.-_--#_'_-'r
Spltahy Adumed Diwan

Chael Executive Oifficer
Central Depamitory Compony of Pokisim Lanided

Eoienghi, Seplember 27, 2008
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO
THE UNIT HOLDERS OF HBL MONEY MARKET FUND

Report an the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We Five suditsd the financial stitements of HBL Money, Market Fund (the Fund), which comprise me
statement of agsets pad labikties gs at June 30, 2018, end the jelated income siatament, statemont of
camgrabensive Income; statemant of mawdrment in wit holders' fund and cosh few siatement for the yaas
than etded, s nobed to'the finencial stabements. Incheding @ summary of significant socaunting polkces.

In. bur apinion, the accempanying financial staterments give & tnie and fair wew of the Anencal positian af
the Fund et 6E June 30, 2040, and of its fewancial porformance, cash flows and frensactions for the yedr
than endad in pocordencn with accounting and reporting sandards o applicalle in Pekiatan,

Basis for Oginion

We conducteld our audit In atoardarves with International Standards on Auditing (I1S835] as applicable in
Paxistah, Cur responsihlities under those standards arn furthas dascrined in the Apdttors §

Par the Audit of by Finarclal Stalemends secson of our repart, We gre independart of the Fund and
Menapamant Compaaly in accordamcn with the Intereationai Ethics Stendardes Soand for Acoourtants” Cope
of Bbhien for Professional Accourtants [TESHA Code) as adopted by the Instilute of Chirtersd Accountants
of Pakistan tegathes with the ethical reguirermenta thal are relevant bo our sudlt of the finandel statements
bt Pakiatan, ang we havs fulfilled our otier athichl responrsibilftiss in accordance with these reguiremeiis
anid the [ESRA Code. We brlimeg Shat the mids avidenon we nave pbiEined o suffcient and sopropliais te
pravidn o basks For our opEnion,

Key Audit Makter

Hey sudit matters are these mattess that, & our grofessional Judgment, were of maost sgnificance inguy
audit of the financial statements of tha current parod. The following mattor was sddressed i i condast
of our audE of the finsncial statements g5 & whaole, and in fopming our ppinion thensn, and e do'not
prawide o separsle ppinscn on this matter.

.
5. No. | Ky audPt matiar Howr tha mwtg: ml:ddnﬂ-d in
[ 1 iﬁmchmmﬁmpdhrnarlwﬂnf Tn arder to adaress the mattar wa
mrrendmrents in Nen-Banking Finence hava;
| | Campanies and Notified Entities Regulation,
loo8 = ‘Held disousssang with management

reganding the srmendimerts made n
|lndlndundmmu-l? to tha finonciad statmments, tha REFC Regiilations, the rosulting

an August 03, 2047, SECP igsued SRO no. changes ragiired in tha finardal
T5E(1 11T wherely certnin amendmenti were stutaments and how the sypstems
made in the MNon-Banking Fingncs Companies and wore updated io cetar for the
Notified Entitles Ragulation, 2006 [Lwe NEFC drThEn T

| Regulatione). Such smendments inlrodutsd

dprn by wl
Tralnicae Trciss TR nd wmiaas
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EHRnEFel dgrniiriarin

. No. Kay sudit matter How the mll::: :::i:dilrlmi in
siditianal discipsums In Income stotement and «  Duired sccount holder wisg
statamant ol mevamenk in unik holders' fund mpyement ol ©l unlt hellers af the-
topether with remaval of PequlFement to presont Bipnd pnel far a samgpla al unit
distriutio statsmant separately. | Tholdors, vardfied the movesnent ir

k tarms af unlts angd ymlise (inclasmg
The sbavementionad amandments requlm fiiik st wisiue per unit) by
wignificant changes In the galculstion, sccouning, chacking puppdrting documenls 1o

Ircarme’ in the finoncial stotamants, vwhich have income alreedy paid on units
peen soplied pa 8 chaige In scoounting pelicy redeamied (5 aoturabe, Ao

ferusentation and ceciotura af the "Eemant af ‘ pnsira Mhat elsmant of income and
prospeciively In sccomdance with this FreAtian prepared gqubntitabive repanilistan

Isslind by tha Securithes and Exchangs Commissian af units reporied; and

of Pakisian, Conpidering tho significance af the

phoye Tectars; we haye ireated these changns os = Chrocked sdequscy of presenmation
‘Key Aldit Mattar. ang digclosure Mguirements

inchuding slemeant af ncome In i
. the financial steterments a% por He
riguirements of Bohedule Vool ne
[ e et

|
Infarmation Gthar than the Bnanclal Statements antd Asdltor's Repart Thizrson

Management Compeny 16 responsitle for tie other irformation, The oiier information comprises thn
irformation indisdad in the pnnual report, buk does ot inckide the fnancinl gtatements snd dur suditor's
FEMGFT Lsaraan.

Cur opEnan Gn the Gnanclsl statements doas nob cover thie other informabion and wa &2 1ok mepross sy
from of ansiarmnce concioslon thersgn.

I connection with gur 20di of the fnancal stabements, our responsibilfy b o cead the other information
snd, in doing o, congider whether tha other information is materially ncordistsnt with the Mnancal
atatEments of owr knowledgr obfained in the swdit of atherwiss sppeers fo be malerislly misstatsd, 1
Hated an the work wi have pesformed, we conclude that there & & matenal resstatament of this other
information, we &re regulred o repet that fact, We hove nothing to repart in this regerd,

Ansponsibliities of Management Comipany and Those Charged with Governancs for tha Flnancial
Simtemionts

Mpnapement Company |8 respandlble for the proparation and fair presentation of thi fingncial satements
in accorgance with accounting snd eeporting stendards @5 applicable in Fakliban, ard for swch Infernal
contral s the Mamagament Company determines |s. necessary to enable the prepoaration of Baancal
stotmmants that are free from materal misstatement, whether due te frinid o arror,

In preparing tha Nnancial stasernents, Managemant Camaany & responsible for naseasing tha Fumd's abllity
to conbinue B8 & gaing cokcom, disclosing; o aplicable; matiers ralatod to going concern and Using thie
gGoEng concarn Basl of scecunting unigss Management Conipany BEher Intends to liquidete the Fund o to
cepse npnranans, or kad no realistie dternative but to oo so.

Thoss Charged with Govarnance of the Management Company e responsibie for aversieing the Fund's

fqh Firimncial Teparting process,

kiperar ol
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Auditor's Responsibilities for e Airdit of the Financial Statrmants

Qur cojectives are to chiam ressonabin essurance about whether the financal statemonts 22 9 whols o
fren froen moten| misststernest, whether dun to frmed or grrgr, @0 to SEsR an suditor's repart that
includen our. ealnion, Rassapnble ssurenee-is 3 high bovel of mmurence, bul is nat 3 guarantes that an
sul conduced In accordance with [SAs sn apolicable in Pokistan will slweys detect @ material
miastatement whan it ewsts, Misstalements can arsa from fred or eror ond dre considersd matenal I,
Individusdly, or i the aggragats, teey eould reasonably b expected i influence the economic decmaons af
usors tak=n oh (e basis of thesn financial stetemedits,

A5 pert of An- sudit in Gceordanos with 15As a8 spplicabie o Paldstan, we exgroisn professanal judgmnnt
and mgintwn profoeslonkl skeabielam throdghout the nudid. We alse:

o Tdeniify and swsess the-raks of material misstatarnant of the Anancidl statarneris, whether due b fra
ararrar, festgn ang perfenm nuedlk procodures u|rumwl to thags rlaks, and cbiain sudit gvidents et
iy suiiclent and approprists to prowde @ besks for our opinfan. The sk of nob dotoching B materis
misstabement resuiting from fraud s Mgher [han for coe reoilting fram error, 28 frasd moy invole
¢nliusion, fasgery, inbentional omizsions, misrepresenintions, ar the deerride of imternad control.

« Oibeain in Enderstanding of intarmal controd refevant o tho sudit in order fo design #uils procedures
that ire apprapriste in the drcumsances, but ot for the purpose of expeessing 20 gpinin on the
gffactivaness af the Manigement Compary's nlemal cortral,

« FEvaluste thn appropristeness of sccodnting polices wssd and the reosonableress of scounting
mstirmatng and relabed daciosures mads ny Manspoment Compery

& Concluge o ihe appropristensss of Mensgement Tompany's use of the going concern besis ol
pecoyrting #nd, based on the audit evidence chilalnid, whethor 8 material uncarainty exista relobed o
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cirumstances, we determine that & matter should not be commuticated In o repors becouse the sdvirse
eonsequenices of daing so would reaconably be avpectad to outweigh the puttis Interast bonofits of such
communication.

Heport an Other Legal and Regulstory Reguiremunts

s e spinion, the firancial statements have bean epared In accordenon with the splevast pl'b'-ﬂslu_r! af
thie fan-Banking Fimance Campanies (Establishment aad Reguistion] Mules, 2003 and Bon-Banking Finpnce
Companies and Matifiad Enbittes fequiatons, J008,

The engagement pariner o the audit rasulting in s independent sudfaes Topetis Hona Sodiy.

Place: Karpchi
Dietel Geptermher 19, 2018
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UsiaTtin Taushe Tatriehiii Lisileil
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HBL Money Market Fund

Statement of Assets and Liabilities

As at June 30, 2018

2018 2017
Note = - (Rupees in '000)----------
Assets
Bank balances 5 7,298,928 3,542,143
Investments 6 - 477,309
Accrued mark-up 7 18,703 21,546
Deposits and prepayments 8 104 100
Total assets 7,317,735 4,041,098
Liabilities
Payable to Management Company 9 5,327 4,625
Payable to the Trustee 10 532 388
Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 11 4,064 3,125
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 12 58,310 90,950
Total liabilities 68,233 99,088
Net assets 7,249,502 3,942,010
Unit holders' fund (as per statement attached) 7,249,502 3,942,010
Contingencies and commitments 13
------- Number of units -------
Number of units in issue 14 67,634,199 38,735,140
.............. (Rupees).............
Net assets value per unit 4.8 107.1869 101.7683
The annexed notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Money Market Fund

Income Statement
For the year ended June 30, 2018

2018 2017
Note =~ = - (Rupees in '000)----------
Income
Mark-up / return on investments 15 138,886 79,392
Mark-up on deposits with banks 16 222,126 188,322
Loss on sale of investments - net (2,020) (75)
358,992 267,639
Expenses
Remuneration of the Management Company 9.1 54,057 47,034
Remuneration of the Trustee 10.1 5,446 4,375
Annual fee of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 11.1 4,064 3,125
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services, accounting,
operation and valuation services 9.3 5,426 4,162
Securities transaction costs 7 14
Settlement and bank charges 426 360
Auditors' remuneration 17 611 632
Annual listing fee 28 67
Printing fee 171 259
Annual rating fee 245 239
Legal fee 49 25
70,530 60,292
288,462 207,347
Element of loss and capital losses included in
prices of units issued less those in units redeemed - net 4.7 - (81,428)
Reversal of Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund 12.1 - 64,738
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 12.1 (5,769) (6,602)
(5,769) 58,136
Net income for the year before taxation 282,693 184,055
Taxation 18 - -
Net income for the year after taxation 282,693 184,055
Allocation of income for the Year
Income already paid on redemption of units 106,990
Accounting income available for distribution:
- Relating to capital gain -
- Excluding capital gain 175,703
175,703
282,693
Earnings per unit 19
The annexed notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Money Market Fund

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended June 30, 2018

Net income for the year after taxation
Other comprehensive income for the year

Item that may be reclassified subsequently
to Income Statement

Unrealised loss on re-measurement of investments classified
as available-for-sale
Net reclassification adjustments relating to available-for-sale

Total comprehensive income for the year

The annexed notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer

282,693 184,055
(2,020) (243)
2,020 75
- (168)
282,693 183,887

Director
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HBL Money Market Fund

Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2018

For the year ended June 30,

2018 2017
(Rupees in '000)
Capital  Undistributed Total Capital Undistributed Total
value income value income
Net assets at the beginning of the year 3,901,748 40,262 3,942,010 - - 3,522,715
Issuance of 132,688,961 units (2017: 172,636,657 units)

- Capital Value (at net asset value per unit at the beginning of the Year) 13,503,431 - 13,503,431 - - 18,188,234
-Element of income 386,579 - 386,579 - - -
Total proceeds on issuance of units 13,890,010 13,890,010 18,188,234

Redemption of 103,789,902 units (2017: 168,592,061 units)
- Capital value (at net asset value per unit at the beginning of the year) (10,562,522) - (10,562,522) - - (17,859,307)
- Amount paid out of element of income
Relating to net income for the year after taxation (195,699) (106,990) (302,689) - - -
Total payment on redemption of units (10,758,221) (106,990)  (10,865,211) - - (17,859,307)
Element of income and capital gains included in prices of
units issued less those in units redeemed-net - - - - - 81,428
Total comprehensive income for the year - 282,693 282,693 - - 183,887
Distribution during the year - - - - - (174,947)
Net income for the year less distribution - 282,693 282,693 - - 8,940
Net assets at the end of the year 7,033,537 215,965 7,249,502 - - 3,942,010
Undistributed income brought forward
- Realised 40,262 24,925
- Unrealised - -
40,262 24,925
Element of income and capital gains included in prices of
units issued less those in units redeemed-net - 6,256
Accounting income available for distribution
- Relating to capital gains - (75)
- Excluding capital gains 175,703 184,130
175,703 184,055
Distribution during the year - (174,974)
Undistributed income carried forward
- Realised 215,965 40,262
- Unrealised - -
215,965 40,262
(Rupees)
Net assets value per unit at beginning of the year 101.7683 101.5468
Net assets value per unit at end of the year 107.1869 101.7683

The annexed notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Money Market Fund

Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended June 30, 2018

2018 2017
Note - (Rupees in '000)----------

Cash flow from operating activities
Net income for the year before taxation 282,693 184,055
Adjustments
Profit from bank deposits (222,126) (188,322)
Return from investments (138,886) (79,392)
Capital loss 2,020 75
Element of loss and capital losses included in
prices of units issued less those in units redeemed - net - 81,428

(76,299) (2,156)
(Increase) / decrease in assets
Investments - net 475,289 1,016,870
Deposits and prepayments (4) (100)

475,285 1,016,770
Increase / (decrease) in liabilities
Payable to Management Company 702 180
Payable to the Trustee 144 17
Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 939 (319)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (32,640) (246,406)

(30,855) (246,528)
Net cash generated from operations 368,131 768,086
Profit received from bank deposits 224,969 168,364
Markup received on investments 138,886 79,392

363,855 247,756
Net cash generated from operating activities 731,986 1,015,842
Cash flow from financing activities
Amount received on issue of units 13,890,010 18,190,734
Payment made against redemption of units (10,865,211) (17,859,307)
Cash dividend paid - (176,765)
Net cash generated from financing activities 3,024,799 154,662
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3,756,785 1,170,504
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 3,542,143 2,371,639
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 5 7,298,928 3,542,143
The annexed notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Money Market Fund

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

1. LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

HBL Money Market Fund (the Fund) was established under a Trust Deed, dated March 18, 2010, executed between
HBL Asset Management Limited as the Management Company and Central Depository Company of Pakistan
Limited as the Trustee. The Fund has been authorised by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (the
SECP) as a unit trust scheme on April 9, 2010.

The Management Company of the Fund has been registered as a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) under the
NBFC Rules, 2003 and has obtained the requisite license from the SECP to undertake Asset Management Services.
The registered office of the Management Company is located at 7th Floor, Emerald Tower, G-19, Block 5, Main
Clifton Road, Clifton, Karachi.

The Fund is an open ended mutual fund and offers units for public subscription on a continuous basis. The units are
transferable and can also be redeemed by surrendering to the Fund. The Fund is listed on the Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited. The units of the Fund were initially offered for public subscription 'at par from July 12, 2010 to
July 14, 2010.

The principal activity of the Fund is to seek high liquidity and comparative return for investors by investing in low
risk securities of shorter duration and maturity.

JCR-VIS Credit Rating Agency has assigned management quality rating of 'AM2+' to the Management Company and
the fund stability rating of AA(f) to the Fund.

Title to the assets of the Fund are held in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as trustee

of the Fund.
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1 Statements of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIIIA of the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984; and

- Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules), Non-Banking
Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations) and requirements of the
Trust Deed.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed differ from the IFRS
Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed have been
followed.

2.2 Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.
2.3 Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Fund's functional and presentation currency.
2.4 Critical accounting estimates and judgments
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards requires the
management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. It also requires the management to exercise judgement in application of its accounting
policies. The estimates, judgements and associated assumptions are based on the historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are

recognised in the year in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that year, or in the year of
revision and future years if the revision affects both current and future years.
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HBL Money Market Fund

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

3.1

3.2

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where estimates and assumptions are
significant to the financial statements as a whole are as follows:

(i) classification and valuation of financial assets (notes 4.2.1.1 and 4.2.1.4); and
(ii) impairment of financial assets (note 4.2.1.5)

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS / AMENDMENTS AND IFRS INTERPRETATIONS, THAT ARE EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the year ended June 30,
2018

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June 30, 2018. These
standards, interpretations and the amendments are either not relevant to the Fund's operations or are not
expected to have significant impact on the Fund's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective from accounting
period beginning on or after:

Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows'
- Amendments as a result of the disclosure initiative

January 01, 2017

Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Recognition of deferred
tax assets for unrealised losses January 01, 2017
Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number
of IFRSs which are also not relevant to the Fund.

New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, beginning on
or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, interpretations and the amendments (except
IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments') are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have
significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective from accounting
period beginning on or after:

IFRS 15 'Revenue from contracts with customers'
- This standard will supersede IAS 18, IAS 11, IFRIC 13, 15
and 18 and SIC 31 upon its effective date.

July 01, 2018

IFRS 16 'Leases' - This standard will supersede IAS 17
'Leases' upon its effective date.

January 01, 2019

Amendments to IFRS 2 'Share-based Payment'
- Clarification on the classification and measurement of
share-based payment transactions

January 01, 2018

IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' July 01, 2018

IFRS 4 'Insurance Contracts': Amendments
regarding the interaction of IFRS 4 and IFRS 9.

An entity choosing to apply the overlay approach
retrospectively to qualifying financial assets does
so when it first applies IFRS 9. An entity choosing
to apply the deferral approach does so for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

Amendments to IFRS 10 'Consolidated Financial
Statements' and IAS 28 'Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures' - Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint
venture

Effective from accounting period beginning on or
after a date to be determined. Earlier application
is permitted.
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HBL Money Market Fund

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

Effective from accounting
period beginning on or after:

Amendments to IAS 28 'Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures' January 01, 2019
- Amendments regarding long-term interests in associates and
joint ventures

Amendments to IAS 19 'Employee Benefits' - Plan Amendment, January 01, 2019
Curtailment or Settlement

Amendments to IAS 40 'Investment Property': Clarification on January 01, 2018
transfers of property to or from investment property

IFRIC 22 'Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration': January 01, 2018
Provides guidance on transactions where consideration against

non-monetary prepaid asset / deferred income is denominated in

foreign currency.

IFRIC 23 'Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments': January 01, 2019
Clarifies the accounting treatment in relation to determination

of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused

tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax

treatments under IAS 12 'Income Taxes'.

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs.
3.2.2 IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' Impact Assessment

3.2.2.1 IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' was issued on July 24, 2017. This standard is adopted locally by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan and is effective from accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2018. The
final version of IFRS 9 brings together the classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting
phases of the IASB's project to replace IAS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement'.

Key requirements of IFRS 9 are as follows;
Classification and measurement of financial assets

- All recognized financial asset that are within the scope of IFRS9 are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value.

- Debt investments that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.

- Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms that give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding are
generally measured at FVTOCI.

- All other debt investments and equity investments are measured at their fair value at the end of subsequent
accounting periods.

- In addition, under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading nor contingent consideration recognized by an
acquirer in a business combination) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally
recognized in profit or loss.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS 9
requires as follows;
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HBL Money Market Fund

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

- The amount of change in the fair value of a financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of such changes in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.

- Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability's credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss. Under IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the financial liability designated as fair
value through profit or loss is presented in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under IAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit
losses are recognized.

SECP through its SCD/AMCW/RS/MUFAP/2017-148 dated November 21, 2017 have deferred the applicability of
above provision requirements in relation to debt securities for mutual funds.

3.2.2.2 Impact Assessment

Based on the analysis of Fund's financial assets and liabilities as at June 30, 2018 on the basis of facts and
circumstances that exists at that date, the Management Company have assessed the impact of IFRS 9 to the Fund's
financial statements as follows;

Market treasury bills classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - held for trading will continue
to be measured at fair value through profit or loss upon application of IFRS 9.

Financial assets classified as loans and receivables are held with a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principle outstanding. These
financial assets will qualify to be measured initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost upon
application of IFRS 9.

Other financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost will continue to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost upon application of IFRS 9.

3.2.3 Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) has also issued the following standards which have not been adopted locally by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan:

- IFRS 1 — First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
- IFRS 14 — Regulatory Deferral Accounts
- IFRS 17 = Insurance Contracts

33 Change in policy in relation to preparation of income statement and statement of comprehensive income

International Accounting Standard (IAS) 1 Presentation of Financial Statements allows an entity to prepare either
two performance statements i.e. income statement and statement of comprehensive income, or one performance
statement only i.e. income statement and statement of comprehensive income (showing both items of income or
loss for the period and items of other comprehensive income). The Fund, with effect from July 01, 2017, has
changed its policy with regard to preparation of income statement and other comprehensive income and opted to
prepare two separate performance statementsi.e. "income statement" and "statement of comprehensive income"
showing separately both income or loss for the year and items of other comprehensive income in separate
statements.

This change has no impact on the items of income or loss or other comprehensive income recognized in prior year
except that items of other comprehensive income previously presented under ‘statement of income statement and
other comprehensive income’ in single statement are now presented within 'income statement' and "statement of
comprehensive income' separately.
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HBL Money Market Fund

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

4.1

4.2

4.2.1

4.2.1.1

4.2.1.2

4.2.1.3

4.2.1.4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with banks and short-term highly liquid investments with original

maturities of three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of assets and liabilities

at cost.

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Classification

The management determines the appropriate classification of its financial assets in accordance with the

requirements of International Accounting Standard 39 (IAS 39), "Financial Instruments: Recognition and

measurement" at the time of purchase of financial assets and re-evaluates this classification on a regular basis. The

classification depends upon the purpose for which the financial assets are acquired.

The financial assets of the Fund are currently categorized as follows:

a) Investments at fair value through profit or loss - held-for-trading
An investment that is acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short-term fluctuations in
prices is classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - held-for-trading. Currently there are no
investment of the Fund classified as at fair value through profit or loss - held for trading.

b) Loans and receivables

These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market.

c) Available for sale
These are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available for sale or are not classified as
(a) loans and receivables (b) held-to-maturity investments, or (c) financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss. These are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time which may be sold in response to the needs
for liquidity or change in price. Currently there are no investment of the fund classified as Available for sale.

Regular way contracts

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date - the date on which the Fund
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are initially recognized at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given including the
transaction cost associated with the acquisition, except in case of "financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- held-for-trading", in which case the transaction costs are charged to 'income statement.

Subsequent measurement

a) Financial assets 'at fair value through profit or loss held for trading' and 'available for sale’

Subsequent to initial measurement, financial assets 'at fair value through profit or loss held for trading' and
'available for sale' are valued as follows:

Basis of valuation of government securities

The investment of the Fund in government securities is valued on the basis of PKRV rates published by Reuters
in accordance with Circular no. 33 of 2012.

Net gains and losses arising on changes in the fair value of financial assets carried 'at fair value through profit or
loss' are taken to the income statement.
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HBL Money Market Fund

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

Net gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of 'available for sale' financial assets are recognised as
'‘other comprehensive income' in the Statement of comprehensive income until these are derecognised or
impaired. At this time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised as 'other comprehensive income' is
transferred to income before taxation as capital gain / (loss).

b) Loans and receivables

Subsequent to initial recognition financial assets classified as 'loans and receivables' are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses are also recognised in the 'income statement' and statement of comprehensive income when
financial assets carried at amortised cost are derecognised or impaired.

4.2.1.5 Impairment

The Management Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that the Fund’s
financial assets or a group of financial assets are impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
such assets is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying value of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount.

For financial assets classified as 'loans and receivables', a provision for impairment is established when there is
objective evidence that the Fund will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms. The
provision against these amounts is made as per the provisioning policy duly formulated and approved by the Board
of Directors of the Management Company in accordance with the requirements of the SECP.

4.2.1.6 Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

4.2.2 Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. These are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired.
4.2.3 Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Statement of Assets and
Liabilities when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
4.3 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made. Provisions are regularly reviewed and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate.
4.4 Taxation
The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than ninety percent of its accounting income for the year,

as reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, is distributed in cash to the unit holders.

The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of section 113 (minimum tax) and section 113C (Alternative Corporate
Tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

The Fund does not account for deferred tax in these financial statements as the Fund intends to continue availing

the tax exemption in future years by distributing in cash at least ninety percent of its accounting income for the year
as reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, to its unit holders
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HBL Money Market Fund

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

4.5 Proposed distributions

Distributions declared subsequent to the reporting date are considered as non-adjusting events and are recognised
in the financial statements in the period in which such distributions are declared.

4.6 Issue and redemption of units

Units issued are recorded at the offer price, determined by the Management Company for the applications received
by the distributors during business hours on that day. The offer price represents the net assets value per unit as of
the close of the business day plus the allowable sales load, provision for transaction costs and any provision for
duties and charges, if applicable.

Units redeemed are recorded at the redemption price, applicable to units for which the distributors receive
redemption applications during business hours of that day. The redemption price represents the net assets value
per unit as of the close of the business day less any back-end load (if applicable), any duties, taxes, charges on
redemption and any provision for transaction costs, if applicable. Redemption of units is recorded on acceptance of
application for redemption.

4.7 Element of income / loss and capital gains / losses included in prices of units issued less those in units redeemed

The Fund has followed the requirements of SRO 756 (I) 2017 dated August 3, 2017 read with NBFC regulations,
2008 in the preparation of these financial statements as follows:

- element of income has been determined as the difference between net assets value on the issuance or
redemption date, as the case maybe, of units and the net asset value at the beginning of the accounting period;

- presented distributable income in statement of movement In unitholders’ fund ; and

- presented allocation of net income available for distribution relating to capital gains and excluding capital gains
in statement of movement In unitholders’ fund.

Amendment in the NBFC Regulations subsequent to the year end

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan through its SRO 756(1)/2017 dated August 3, 2017 has made
certain amendments in the NBFC Regulations. The notification includes a definition and explanation relating to
"element of income" and excludes the element of income from the expression "accounting income" as described
in Regulation 63 (amount distributable to unit holders) of the NBFC Regulations. As per the notification, element of
income represents the difference between net assets value per unit on the issuance or redemption date, as the
case may be, of units and the net assets value per unit at the beginning of the relevant accounting period. Further,
the revised regulations also specify that element of income is a transaction of capital nature and the receipt and
payment of element of income shall be taken to unit holders' fund. However, to maintain the same ex-dividend net
asset value of all units outstanding on the accounting date, net element of income contributed on issue of units
lying in unit holders fund will be refunded on units in the same proportion as dividend bears to accounting income
available for distribution. Furthermore, the revised regulations also require certain additional disclosures with
respect to 'Income Statement' and 'Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund', whereas disclosure with
respect to 'Distribution Statement' has been deleted in the revised regulations.

Previously, an equalisation account called the 'element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in
prices of units issued less those in units redeemed' was created, in order to prevent the dilution of per unit income
and distribution of income already paid out on redemption. The net element of income / (loss) and capital gains /
(losses) relating to units issued and redeemed during the accounting period which pertained to unrealised
appreciation / (diminution) held in the Unit Holder's Fund was recorded in a separate account and any amount
remaining in this reserve account at the end of the accounting period (whether gain or loss) was included in the
amount available for distribution to the unitholders. The remaining portion of the net element of income / (loss)
and capital gains / (losses) relating to units issued and redeemed during an accounting period was recognised in the
Income Statement.

As required by IAS 8: 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors', a change in accounting
policy requires retrospective application as if that policy had always been applied. However, the Management
Company has applied the above changes in accounting policy, including the additional disclosures requirements in
the 'Income Statement' and 'Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund', prospectively from July 1, 2017 as
required by SECP vide its email dated February 8, 2017. Accordingly, corresponding figures have not been restated.
The ‘Distribution Statement’ for the comparative period has not been presented as it has been deleted as a result
of the amendments made in the NBFC Regulations through aforementioned SRO issued by the SECP.
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Had the element of income been recognised as per the previous accounting policy, the income of the Fund would
have been higher by Rs 83.890 million. However, the change in accounting policy does not have any impact on the
'Cash flow Statement’, the 'net assets attributable to the unit holders' and 'net asset value per unit' as shown in the
'Statement of Assets and Liabilities' and 'Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund'. The change has resulted
in inclusion of certain additional disclosures / new presentation requirements in the 'Income Statement' and
'Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund which have been incorporated in these statements.

4.8 Net assets value per unit

The net asset value (NAV) per unit as disclosed in the statement of assets and liabilities is calculated by dividing the
net asset of the Fund by the number of units in issue at the year end.

4.9 Revenue recognition

- Realised capital gains / (losses) arising on sale of investments are included in the 'income statement and other
comprehensive income' on the date at which the transaction takes place.

- Mark-up / return on Government securities, bank profits and investment in debt securities are recognized at a
time apportionate basis using the effective interest method.

- Unrealised gains / (losses) arising on re-measurement of investments classified as 'available for sale' are
included in 'other comprehensive income' in 'income statement and statement of comprehensive income' in
the period in which they arise.

4.10 Expenses

All expenses including NAV based expenses (namely management fee, trustee fee and annual fee payable to the
SECP) are recognised in the 'income statement' on a time apportionment basis using the effective interest method.

2018 2017
Note = ------—-- (Rupees in '000)----------
5. BANK BALANCES
Balances with bank in:
- Saving account 5.1 6,798,928 3,542,143
Term deposit receipts 5.2 500,000 -
7,298,928 3,542,143
5.1 This represents bank accounts held with different banks. Mark-up rates on these accounts range between 4.00% -
7.45% per annum (2017: 4.00% - 6.70% per annum).
5.2 Term deposit receipts carries mark-up at the rate of 7.40% per annum and will mature on July 27, 2018.
2018 2017
Note = —----o-ee- (Rupees in '000)----------
6. INVESTMENTS
Available for sale
- Government Securities 6.1 - -
Held for trading
- Government Securities 6.2 - -
Loans and receivables
- Certificate of investment - -
- Term deposit receipts 6.3 380,000
- Clean placement - 97,309
- 477,309
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6.1 Investment in Government Securities - Available-for-sale
Issue Date Tenure Face value Market value as a
percentage of
Sales/ Market
As at Purchases ales As at Value as at
. Matured Total Net
July 1, during during the June 30, lune 30, Investments Assets
2017 the year & 2018 2018
year
--------------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------=====ummmmmmmeeeae
Treasury bills
July 21, 2016 12 month - 900,000 900,000 - - - -
January 19, 2017 6 month - 825,000 825,000 - - - -
February 2, 2017 6 month - 300,000 300,000 - - -
February 16, 2017 6 month - 95,000 95,000 - - - -
May 11, 2017 3 month - 225,000 225,000 - - - -
Total - As at June 30, 2018 - 2,345,000 2,345,000 - - - -
Total - As at June 30, 2017 1,400,000 18,733,000 20,133,000 - - - -
6.2 Investment in Government Securities - Held-for-trading
Issue Date Tenure Face value Market value as a
percentage of
Sales/ Market
As at Purchases ales As at Value as at
. Matured Total Net
July 1, during during the June 30, June 30, Investments Assets
2017 the year yegr 2018 2018

Treasury bills

May 25, 2017 3 month - 915,000 915,000 - - - -
June 8, 2017 12 month - 150,000 150,000 - - - -
July 20, 2017 3 month - 2,570,000 2,570,000 - - - -
August 3, 2017 3 month - 1,600,000 1,600,000 - - - -
August 17,2017 3 month - 550,000 550,000 - - - -
August 31, 2017 3 month - 1,550,000 1,550,000 - - - -
September 14, 2017 3 month - 450,000 450,000 - - - -
September 28, 2017 3 month - 1,000,000 1,000,000 - - - -
October 12, 2017 3 month - 1,299,000 1,299,000 - - - -
October 26, 2017 3 month - 1,500,000 1,500,000 - - - -
November 9, 2017 3 month - 4,000,000 4,000,000 - - - -
November 23, 2017 6 month - 331,000 331,000 - - - -
November 23, 2017 3 month - 4,325,000 4,325,000 - - - -
December 7, 2017 6 month - 350,000 350,000 - - - -
January 4, 2018 3 month - 500,000 500,000 - - - -
January 18, 2018 3 month - 4,385,000 4,385,000 - - - -
February 1, 2018 3 month - 2,470,000 2,470,000 - - - -
February 15, 2018 3 month - 2,860,000 2,860,000 - - - -
March 15, 2018 3 month - 75,000 75,000 - - - -
April 12,2018 3 month - 11,345,000 11,345,000 - - - -
April 26,2018 3 month - 150,000 150,000 - - - -
May 10, 2018 3 month - 4,000,000 4,000,000

June 7, 2018 3 month - 850,000 850,000 - - - -
Total - As at June 30, 2018 - 47,225,000 47,225,000 - - - -

Total - As at June 30, 2017 - - - - R B _
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Percentage

6.3 As at Placement = Matured As at of total Percentage
: Name of Company July 1, made during during June 30, value of of Net
2017 the year the year 2018 . Assets
investments
--------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------======nnnmmmmemnn
Bank Alfalah Limited - 1,375,000 (1,375,000) - 0.00% 0.00%
Zarai Taragiati Bank Limited 380,000 460,000 (840,000) - 0.00% 0.00%
Total - As at June 30, 2018 380,000 1,835,000 (2,215,000) - 0.00% 0.00%
Total - As at June 30, 2017 400,000 2,645,000 (2,665,000) 380,000 79.61% 9.64%
2018 2017
Note =~ - (Rupees in '000)----------
7. ACCRUED MARK-UP
Mark-up accrued on:
- deposits with banks 18,298 19,448
- term deposit receipts 405 2,098
18,703 21,546
8. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Deposits 100 100
Prepayments 4 -
104 100
9. PAYABLE TO THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
Management fee 9.1 4,231 3,760
Sindh Sales Tax 9.2 550 489
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services 9.3 546 376
5,327 4,625
9.1 As per the offering document of the Fund, the Management Company charge a fee at the rate of 1% of the average
annual net assets on daily basis of the scheme subject to the guidelines as may be issued by the Commission from
time to time. Effective from January 15, 2018 the rate of fee is revised through amendment in the offering
documents of the scheme as 10% of the gross earnings of the scheme, calculated on a daily basis subject to a cap
of 1.00% and a floor of 0.75% of the average daily net assets of the scheme. The fee is payable monthly in arrears.
9.2 The Sindh Provincial Government has levied Sindh Sales Tax (SST) at the rate of 13 percent (2017: 13 percent) on
the remuneration of the Management Company through Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011.
9.3 As per Regulation 60(3)(s) of the amended NBFC Regulations dated November 25, 2015, fee and expenses
pertaining to registrar services, accounting, operation and valuation services related to a Collective Investment
Scheme (CIS) are chargeable to the CIS, maximum upto 0.1 percent of the average annual net assets or the actual
cost whichever is lower. Accordingly, the Management Company has charged aforementioned expenses to the
extent of 0.1% of the average annual net assets, being lower amount, to the Fund during the year.
2018 2017
Note = - (Rupees in '000)----------
10. PAYABLE TO THE TRUSTEE
Trustee's remuneration 10.1 532 388
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10.1 The Trustee is entitled to a monthly remuneration for services rendered to the Fund under the provisions of the
Trust Deed as per the tariff specified therein, based on the daily net assets of the Fund. The fee is paid to the Trustee
monthly in arrears.

The tariff structure applicable to the Fund is as follows:

Amount of Funds Under Management Tariff per annum
[Average Net Assets Value (NAV)]

Upto Rs 1000 million. Rs.0.7 million or 0.15% p.a of net asset whichever is higher.
On amount exceeding Rs.1,000 million and upto ~ Rs.1.5 million plus 0.075% p.a of the net assets on amount
Rs.10,000 million. exceeding Rs.1000 million upto 10,000 million.
Over Rs 10,000 million. Rs.8.25 million plus 0.06% of NAV,exceeding Rs.10,000 million
2018 2017
Note - (Rupees in '000)----------

11. PAYABLE TO SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE

COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN

Annual fee 11.1 4,064 3,125
11.1 Under the provisions of the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 a collective

investment scheme categorized as a money market scheme is required to pay as annual fee to the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan, an amount equal to 0.075 percent of the average annual net assets of the
scheme. The fee is payable annually in arrears.

2018 2017
Note = - (Rupees in '000)----------
12. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Auditors' remuneration 542 530
Withholding tax payable - 26,101
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 12.1 12,371 6,602
Federal Excise Duty 12.2 41,211 41,211
Capital gain tax payable 1,388 8,152
Advance against units to be issued 2,500 2,500
Other payable 298 5,854

58,310 90,950

12.1 The Finance Act 2008 introduced an amendment to the Workers' Welfare Fund Ordinance, 1971 (WWF Ordinance).
As a result of this amendment it may be construed that all Collective Investment Schemes (CISs) / mutual funds
whose income exceeds Rs. 0.5 million in a tax year, have been brought within the scope of the WWF Ordinance,
thus rendering them liable to pay contribution to WWF at the rate of two percent of their accounting or taxable
income, whichever is higher. In this regard, a constitutional petition has been filed by certain CISs through their
trustees in the Honourable High Court of Sindh, challenging the applicability of WWF to the CISs, which is pending
adjudication.

The Finance Act 2015 incorporated an amendment in WWF Ordinance by excluding CIS from the definition of
Industrial Establishment, and consequently CIS are no more liable to pay contribution to WWF with effect from July
1, 2015.

Subsequently, the Ministry of Labour and Manpower (the Ministry) vide its letter dated July 15, 2010 clarified that
“Mutual Fund(s) is a product which is being managed / sold by the Asset Management Companies which are liable
to contribute towards Workers Welfare Fund under Section 4 of the WWF Ordinance. However, the income on
Mutual Fund(s), the product being sold, is exempted under the law ibid”.

Further, the Secretary (Income Tax Policy) Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) issued a letter dated October 6, 2010 to
the Members (Domestic Operation) North and South FBR. In the letter, reference was made to the clarification
issued by the Ministry stating that mutual funds are a product and their income are exempted under the law ibid.
The Secretary (Income Tax Policy) Federal Board of Revenue directed that the Ministry’s letter may be circulated
amongst field formations for necessary action. Following the issuance of FBR Letter, show cause notice which were
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issued by taxation office to certain mutual funds for payment of levy under WWF were withdrawn. However, the
Secretary (Income Tax Policy) Federal Board of Revenue vide letter January 4, 2011 has cancelled ab-initio
clarificatory letter dated October 6, 2010 on applicability of WWF on mutual funds and issued show cause notices
to certain mutual funds for collecting WWF. In respect of such show cause notices, certain mutual funds have been
granted stay by High Court of Sindh on the basis of the pending constitutional petition in the said court as referred
above.

During the year ended June 30, 2013, the Larger Bench of the Sindh High Court (SHC) issued a judgment in response
to a petition in another similar case in which it is held that the amendments introduced in the WWF Ordinance
through Finance Acts, 2006 and 2008 do not suffer from any constitutional or legal infirmity.

During the year ended June 30, 2014, the Peshawar High Court on a petition filed by certain aggrieved parties
(other than the mutual funds) has been adjudicated that the amendments introduced in the Workers Welfare Fund
Ordinance, 1971 through the Finance Acts of 1996 and 2009 lacks the essential mandate to be introduced and
passed through the money bill under the Constitution of Pakistan and hence have been declared as ultra vires the
Constitution.

However, the Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) passed a judgment on November 10, 2016, deciding that
amendments made through the Finance Acts through which WWF was levied are unlawful, as such are not in
nature of tax; therefore, it could not be introduced through the money bill. However, the Federal Board of Revenue
has filed a review petition in the SCP against the said judgment, which is pending for hearing in the SCP.

Further, the Government of Sindh also introduced levy of the Sindh Workers” Welfare Fund (SWWF) through the
Sindh Workers’ Welfare Act, 2014. The Mutual Fund Association of Pakistan, in the previous years based on opinion
obtained from the tax consultants, concluded that SWWF is not applicable on mutual funds. MUFAP also wrote to
the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) that mutual funds are not establishments and are pass through vehicles; therefore,
they do not have any worker and, as a result, no SWWF is payable by them. SRB responded back that as mutual
funds are included in definition of financial institutions in the Financial Institutions (Recovery of Finance)
Ordinance, 2001, and thus SWWF is payable by them. MUFAP has taken up the matter with the concerned ministry
[Sindh Finance Ministry] for appropriate resolution of the matter.

Considering the above developments, the Management Company assessed the position of the Fund with regard to
reversal of provision of WWF and recognition of provision of SWWF, and decided in the prior year that:

- the Sindh Workers’ Welfare Fund (SWWF) should be recognized from July 01, 2014, and

- Provision computed for SWWF should be adjusted against provision of WWF, as the SCP declared WWF
unlawful. It was also decided that if any further provision is required, then it should be recognized in books of
the Fund. If provision of WWF is in excess of provision required for SWWF, the remaining provision of WWF
should be carried forward unless further clarification is received from the MUFAP.

As a result, the Management Company assessed that no further provision is required for SWWF and additional
provision of WWF should be carried forward till the matter is cleared.

In the wake of the aforesaid developments, the MUFAP called its Extraordinary General Meeting (EOGM) on
January 11, 2017, wherein the MUFAP recommended to its members that effective from January 12, 2017,
Workers' Welfare Fund (WWF) recognised earlier should be reversed in light of the decision made by the Supreme
Court of Pakistan; and, Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund (SWWF) should be recognized effective from May 21, 2015.

MUFAP also communicated the above-mentioned decisions to the Securities and Exchange of Commission (SECP)
through its letter dated January 12, 2017, and the SECP through its letter dated February 01, 2017, advised that the
adjustment should be prospective and supported by adequate disclosures.

As a result of the above recommendations of the MUFAP, the Fund on January 12, 2017, reversed the provision of
WWEF amounting to Rs. 64.738 million and started recognising provision for SWWF.

As at June 30, 2018, the provision in relation to SWWF amounted to Rs. 12.373 million (2017: Rs. 6.602 million). Had

the provision not being made, the Net Asset Value per unit as at June 30, 2018 would have been higher by Rs. 0.183
(June 30, 2017: Rs. 0.170) per unit.
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12.2 As per the requirement of the Finance Act, 2013, Federal Excise Duty (FED) at the rate of 16 percent on the
remuneration of the Management Company has been applied effective from June 13, 2013. The Management
Company is of the view that since the remuneration is already subject to the provincial sales tax, further levy of FED
results in double taxation, which does not appear to be the spirit of the law, hence, a petition was collectively filed
by the Mutual Fund Association of Pakistan along-with Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited with the
Sindh High Court (SHC) on September 04, 2013.

While disposing the above petition through order dated June 30, 2016, the SHC declared the said provisions to be
ultra vires and as a result no FED is payable with effect from July 01, 2011. However, the tax authorities
subsequently filed appeal against the decision of the SHC in the Supreme Court of Pakistan, which is pending for the
decision.

The Finance Act, 2016 excluded the mutual funds from the levy of FED with effect from July 01, 2016. therefore, no
provision is charged during the year ending June 30, 2018.

However, since the appeal is pending in Supreme Court of Pakistan, the Management Company, has made a
provision on FED on remuneration of Management Company, aggregating to Rs. 41.211 million. Had the provision

not been made, the Net Asset Value per unit as at June 30, 2018 would have been higher by Rs. 0.609 (June 30,
2017: Rs. 1.064) per unit.

13. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

There are no contingencies and commitments outstanding as at June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017.

2018 2017
---------- (Number of Units)----------
14. NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE
Total units in issue at the beginning of the year 38,735,140 34,690,544
Units issued 132,688,961 172,636,657
Units redeemed (103,789,902) (168,592,061)
Total units in issue at the end of the year 67,634,199 38,735,140
15. MARK-UP / RETURN ON INVESTMENTS
Mark-up on:
- Government securities 122,679 77,084
- Placements 16,207 2,308
138,886 79,392
2018 2017
---------- (Rupees in '000)----------
16. MARK-UP ON DEPOSITS WITH BANKS
Mark-up on:
- Savings accounts 186,154 148,590
- Term deposit receipts 35,972 39,732
222,126 188,322
17. AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
Annual audit fee 460 455
Fee for half yearly review 55 55
Review of compliance with the requirements of the
Code of Corporate Governance - 5
Other certifications and out of pocket expenses 96 117
611 632
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18. TAXATION

The Fund's income is exempt from Income Tax as per clause (99) of part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than 90% of the accounting income for the year as reduced
by capital gains whether realised or unrealised is distributed to the unit holders in cash. The Fund is also exempt
from the provisions of section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001. Subsequent to year end on July 4, 2018, Management Company has distributed cash dividend
of at least 90 percent of the aforementioned accounting income to the unit holders. Accordingly, no provision for
taxation has been recognised in these financial statements.

19. EARNINGS PER UNIT

Earnings per unit (EPU) has not been disclosed as in the opinion of management determination of cumulative
weighted average number of outstanding units is not practicable.

20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
-------------- As on June 30, 2018 --------------
Loans and Available
. Total
receivables for sale
-------------- Rupees in '000 --------------
Assets
Bank balances 7,298,928 - 7,298,928
Accrued mark-up 18,703 - 18,703
Deposits 100 100
7,317,731 - 7,317,731
-------------- As on June 30, 2018 --------------
At fair value Other Total
through profit  financial
or loss liabilities
-------------- Rupees in '000 --------------
Liabilities
Payable to the Management Company - 5,327 5,327
Payable to the Trustee - 532 532
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 840 840
Unit holders' fund - 7,249,502 7,249,502
- 7,256,202 7,256,202
-------------- As on June 30, 2017 --------------
Loans and Available
; Total
receivables for sale
-------------- Rupees in '000 --------------
Assets
Bank balances 3,542,143 - 3,542,143
Investments 477,309 - 477,309
Accrued mark-up 21,546 - 21,546
Deposits 100 - 100
4,041,098 - 4,041,098
-------------- As on June 30, 2017 --------------
At fair value Other Total
through profit  financial
Liabiliti or loss liabilities
abfliies T Rupees in '000 --------------
Payable to the Management Company - 4,625 4,625
Payable to the Trustee - 388 388
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 6,384 6,384
Unit holders' fund - 3,942,010 3,942,010

- 3,953,407 3,953,407
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21. TRANSACTIONS WITH CONNECTED PERSONS / RELATED PARTIES
Connected persons include HBL Asset Management Limited being the Management Company, Habib Bank Limited
being the Sponsor, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of the Fund, other collective
investment schemes managed by the Management Company, directors and officers of the Management Company,
directors of connected persons and persons having 10% or more beneficial ownership of the units of the Fund.

Transactions with connected persons are in the normal course of business, at contracted rates and terms
determined in accordance with market rates.

Remuneration payable to Management Company and Trustee is determined in accordance with the provisions of
the NBFC Regulations and the Trust Deed respectively.

Details of the transactions with connected persons and balances with them, if not disclosed elsewhere in these
financial statements are as follows:

21.1 Transactions during the year

HBL Asset Management Limited - Management Company

Management fee 54,057 47,034
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,

accounting, operation and valuation services 5,426 4,162
Issue of 1,106,289 units (2017: 2,673,815 units) 114,079 285,829
Redemption of 115,578 units (2017: 7,986,217 units) 12,000 833,686

Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor

Issue of Units 6,535,940 units (2017: 104,325 Units) 700,000 10,568
Dividend Paid - 10,568
Bank charges paid 265 210
Mark-up earned during the year 39,520 32,563
Mark-up received during the year 40,692 30,178

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Remuneration 5,446 4,375

Directors, Executives and Key Management personnel

Issue of units 340 units (2017: 131,753 units) 36 40,214
Redemption of units 137,374 (2017: 123,243 units) 14,099 26,916
21.2 Amounts outstanding as at year end

HBL Asset Management Limited - Management Company

Management Fee 4,231 3,760
Sindh Sales Tax 550 489
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services, accounting, operation and

valuation services 546 376
Investment held in the Fund : 990,713 units (June 30, 2017: Nil units) 106,191 -

Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor
Investment held in the Fund : 8,317,697 units (2017: 1,781,757 units) 891,548 181,326
Bank balances 479,807 899,493

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Remuneration payable 471 695
Sindh Sales tax 61 85
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Directors, Executives and Key Management personnel
Investment held in the Fund 12,005 units (2017: 8,510 units) 1,287 13,981

22. PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT COMMITTEE AND FUND MANAGER

Details of members of the investment committee of the Fund are as follow:

S.no. Name Designation Qualification Experience in years
1 Farid Ahmed Khan Chief Executive Officer MBA, CFA 25+ years
2 Muhammad Imran Chief Investment Officer MBA - Finance 18+ years
3 Faizan Saleem Head of Fixed Income MBA - Finance 10+ years
4 Noman Ameer Manager Risk MBA - Finance 11+ years
5 Sateesh Balani Head of Research MBA, CFA 7+ years
23. TOP BROKERS / DEALERS BY PERCENTAGE OF COMMISSION PAID

Top brokers during the year ended June 30, 2018

1 Bright Capital (Pvt) Limited

2 Arif Habib Limited

3 EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited

4 BMA Capital Management Limited
5 Invest Capital Markets Limited

6 Magenta Capital (Pvt) Limited

7 C& M Management (Pvt.) Limited
8 JS Global Capital Limited
9 Pearl Securities Limited
10 Next Capital Limited

Top brokers during the year ended June 30, 2017

1 Invest Capital Markets Limited

2 Invest & Finance Securities Limited

3 Pearl Securities Limited

4 C& M Management (Private) Limited
5 lcon Securities (Private) Limited

6 Optimus Markets (Private) Limited

7 JS Global Capital Limited

8 Bright Capital (Private) Limited

9 BIPL Securities Limited

10 Arif Habib Limited

24, PATTERN OF UNIT HOLDING
2018
Unit
Number of Number of holding or Percentage
units holders  units held investment of total
amount
-------------- Rupees in '000 --------------
Individuals 1,955 28,507,791 3,055,664 42.15%
Associated company 1 9,308,411 997,739 13.76%
Director 1 356 38 0.00%
Banks and DFls - - - 0.00%
Insurance companies 8 801,665 85,928 1.19%
Retirement funds 7 3,535,085 378,915 5.23%
Trust 3 343,824 36,853 0.51%
Foreign Investors 3 21,651 2,321 0.03%
Others 46 25,115,417 2,692,044 37.13%
2,024 67,634,199 7,249,502 100.00%
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2017
Unit
Number of Number of holding or Percentage
units holders  units held investment of total
amount

Individuals 1,070 19,074,870 1,941,217 49.24%
Associated companies 1 1,781,758 181,327 4.60%
Directors 1 128,835 13,111 0.33%
Banks and DFls - - - 0.00%
Insurance companies 3 539,966 54,951 1.39%
Retirement funds 5 226,633 23,064 0.59%
Trust 4 923,576 93,991 2.38%
Others 20 16,059,503 1,634,349 41.46%

1,104 38,735,140 3,942,010 100.00%

25. ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Five meetings of the Board of Directors were held on August 25, 2017, October 27, 2017, November 23, 2017,
February 26, 2018 and April 23, 2018 respectively. Information in respect of the attendance by the Directors in the
meetings is given below:

Number of meetings
S.No. Name of Director Held Attended Leave granted Meetings not attended

Mr. Agha Sher Shah 1
Mr. Farid Ahmed Khan
Ms. Ava A. Cowasjee
Mr. Rayomond H. Kotwal
Mr. Rizwan Haider
Mr. Shabbir Hussain Hashmi 2
Mr. Shahid Ghaffar 3
Mr. Nadeem Abdullah 4
Mr.Towfiq Habib Chinoy 5
0 Mr.Salahuddin Manzoor 6

November 23,2017 & April 23,2018
October 27,2017

February 26,2018

P OOONOOTUEAWNE

WWhrNRPUTOUOUVIUIN

WwhRrERrPpPUOTWUIN
I'_\I'_\INI

Appointed on November 23, 2017.
Appointed on February 26, 2018.
Appointed on December 04, 2017.
Resigned on February 26, 2018.
Resigned on November 23, 2017.
Resigned on November 30, 2017.

DU WNBE

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Board of Directors of the Management Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight
of the Fund's risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Fund's
risk management policies.
The Fund's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Fund, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Fund's activities.
The Fund primarily invests in a portfolio of money market investments, government securities and in other money
market instruments. These activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks, market risks, credit risks and liquidity
risks.

26.1 The Fund's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

26.1.1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate as a result
of changes in market prices.
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The Management Company manages market risk by monitoring exposure on marketable securities by following the
internal risk management policies and investment guidelines approved by the Investment Committee and
regulations laid down by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Market risk comprises of three types of risk ; currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.

26.1.2 Currency risk
This is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Fund, at present is not exposed to currency risk as its operations are geographically
restricted to Pakistan and all transactions are carried out in Pak Rupees.

26.1.3 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result
of changes in market interest rates.

a) Cash flow interest rate risk

The Fund's interest rate risk arises from the balances in savings accounts, Term deposit receipts and clean
placements. The net income for the year would have increased / (decreased) by Rs. 67,989 million (2017: Rs.
1.906 million), had the interest rates on savings accounts with banks increased / (decreased) by 100 basis
points.

b) Fair value interest rate risk

The Fund does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
account. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit and loss account of
the Fund.

The composition of the Fund's investment portfolio and rates announced by Financial Market Association of
Pakistan is expected to change over time. Therefore, the sensitivity analysis prepared as of June 30, 2018 is not
necessarily indicative of the effect on the Fund's net assets of future movements in interest rates.

Yield / Interest rate risk position for on balance sheet financial instruments is based on the earlier of contractual
reprising or maturity date and for off-balance sheet instruments is based on the settlement date.

2018
Exposed to Yield / Interest rate risk
Total Upto three More than More than Not exposed
months three months one year to Yield /
and upto one Interest rate
year risk

-------------- Rupees in '000 --------------
On-balance sheet financial instruments

Financial assets

Bank balances 7,298,928 7,298,928 - -

Accrued mark-up 18,703 - - - 18,703

Deposits 100 - - - 100
7,317,731 7,298,928 - - 18,803

Financial liabilities

Payable to Management Company 5,327 - - - 5,327

Payable to the Trustee 532 - - - 532

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 840 - - - 840

Unit holders' fund 7,249,502 - - - 7,249,502
7,256,201 - - - 7,256,201

On-balance sheet gap 61,530 7,298,928 - - (7,237,398)

Off-balance sheet financial instruments - - - - -

Off-balance sheet gap - - - R R
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2017
Exposed to Yield / Interest rate risk
Total Upto three More than More than Not exposed
months three months one year to Yield /
and upto one Interest rate
year risk

-------------- Rupees in '000 --------------
On-balance sheet financial instruments

Financial assets

Bank balances 3,542,143 3,542,143 - - -
Investments 477,309 - - - 477,309
Accrued mark-up 21,546 - - - 21,546
Deposits 100 - - - 100
4,041,098 3,542,143 - - 498,955
Financial liabilities
Payable to Management Company 4,625 - - - 4,625
Payable to the Trustee 388 - - - 388
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 6,384 - - - 6,384
Unit holders' fund 3,942,010 - - - 3,942,010
3,953,407 - - - 3,953,407
On-balance sheet gap 87,691 3,542,143 - - (3,454,452)

Off-balance sheet financial instruments - - - - -

Off-balance sheet gap - - - B B

26.1.4 Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk) whether those changes
are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar
financial instruments traded in the market. Currently, the Fund does not hold any security which exposes the Fund
to price risk.

26.2 Credit risk

The Fund is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when
they fall due. Credit risk arises from the inability of the counter party to fulfil their obligations. There is a possibility
of default by participants or failure of the financial markets / stock exchanges, the depositories, the settlements or
clearing system, etc.

The Fund's most significant financial assets are term deposit receipts, placements, balances held with banks, and
mark-up accrued on term deposit receipts and bank balances. The credit risk in respect of these balances is limited
because counter parties are banks with high credit worthiness.

The analysis below summarises the credit quality of the Fund's financial assets as at June 30, 2018:

Bank balances by rating category

A-1+ (JCR-VIS) 6,434,129 2,335,720
Al+ (PACRA) 864,762 1,206,387
A-1 (JCR-VIS) 37 36

7,298,928 3,542,143
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Investments in Government Securities - -

Certificate of investments - -
Term deposit receipts

A-1 (JCR-VIS) - 380,000
Clean Placement

Al+ (PACRA) - 97,309
Accrued mark-up 18,703 21,546
Deposits 100 100

The maximum exposure to credit risk before considering any related collateral as at June 30, 2018 is the carrying
amount of the financial assets. None of these are 'impaired' nor 'past due but not impaired'.

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with the
same counterparty, or where a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in
the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. The Fund's portfolio of
financial assets is broadly diversified and transactions are entered into with diverse credit worthy counterparties
thereby mitigating any significant concentration of credit risk.

26.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations arising from its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset or such obligations will have to be settled in
a manner disadvantageous to the Fund.

The Fund is mainly exposed to the daily cash redemption requests on a regular basis. Units are redeemable at the
holders' option based on the Fund’s net asset value per unit, at the time of redemption, calculated in accordance
with the Fund’s constitutive document and guidelines laid down by the SECP.

The Fund's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that the Fund will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due under both normal and stressed conditions without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the Fund's reputation. The Fund's policy is therefore to invest the majority of its assets
in investments that are traded in an active market and can be readily realised.

The table below analyses the Fund's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

2018
Number of  Upto three Over three Over one
unit holders months months and year

upto one year

-------------- Rupees in '000 --------------
Financial liabilities
(excluding unit holders' fund)

Payable to Management Company 5,327 5,327 - -
Payable to the Trustee 532 532 - -
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 840 840 - -

6,699 6,699 - -
Unit holders' fund 7,249,502 7,249,502 - -
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2017
Number of Upto three Over three Over one
unit holders months  months and year

upto one year

-------------- Rupees in '000 --------------
Financial liabilities
(excluding unit holders' fund)

Payable to Management Company 4,625 4,625 - -
Payable to the Trustee 388 388 - -
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 6,384 6,384 - -
11,397 11,397 - -
Unit holders' fund 3,942,010 3,942,010 - -
27. UNITS HOLDERS' FUND RISK MANAGEMENT

The unit holders' fund is represented by the net assets attributable to unit holders / redeemable units. The amount
of net assets attributable to unit holders can change significantly on a daily basis as the Fund is subject to daily
issuance and redemptions at the discretion of unit holders. These unit holders of the Fund are entitled to
distributions and to payment of a proportionate share based on the Fund's net asset value per unit on the
redemption date. The relevant movements are shown on the statement of movement in unit holders' fund. Unit
holders fund risk management is carried out by the Management Company through following steps:

- Monitor the level of daily issuance and redemptions relative to the liquid assets and adjust the amount of
distributions the Fund pays to the unit holders;

- Redeem and issue units in accordance with the constitutive documents of the Fund. This includes the Fund's
ability to restrict redemptions; and

- The Fund Manager / Investment Committee members and the Chief Executive Officer of the Management
Company critically track the movement of ‘Assets under Management’. The Board of Directors is updated
regarding key performance indicators, e.g., yield and movement of NAV and total Fund size at the end of each
quarter.

The Fund has maintained and complied with the requirements of minimum fund size during the current year.
28. FAIR VALUE AND CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid or transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants and measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values
and the fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern without any intention or
requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets i.e. listed equity shares are based on the
quoted market prices at the close of trading on the reporting date. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Fund is current bid price.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 13, "Fair Value Measurement" requires the Fund to classify fair
value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

The Fund classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs
used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(level 1);
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- Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2); and

- Fair value measurements using Inputs for assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e.
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

As at June 30, 2018 the fund does not have any financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value.

The table below provides information on financial assets or liabilities under different categories, by valuation

methods.
June 30, 2018
Carrying amount Fair Value
Other
financial
Available Loansand assets/
-for-sale receivables liabilities Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
On-balance sheet financial instruments (Rupees in '000)
Financial assets not measured at fair value 28.1
Bank balances - 7,298,928 - 7,298,928
Investments
- Term deposit receipts 6.3 - - - -
- Clean placements - -
Accrued mark-up - 18,703 - 18,703
Deposits - 100 - 100
- 7,317,731 - 7,317,731
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 28.1
Payable to Management Company - - 5,327 5,327
Payable to the Trustee - - 532 532
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - - 840 840

- - 6,699 6,699

June 30,2017

Carrying amount Fair Value
Other
financial
Available Loansand  assets/
-for-sale receivables liabilities Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

On-balance sheet financial instruments (Rupees in '000)

Financial assets not measured at fair value 28.1 -
Bank balances - 3,542,143 - 3,542,143
Investments
- Term deposit receipts 6.3 - 380,000 - 380,000
- Clean placements 97,309 97,309
Accrued mark-up - 21,546 - 21,546
Deposits - 100 - 100
- 4,041,098 - 4,041,098
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 28.1
Payable to Management Company - - 4,625 4,625
Payable to the Trustee - - 388 388
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - - 6,384 6,384
- - 11,397 11,397
28.1 The Fund has not disclosed the fair values for these financial assets and financial liabilities, as these are either short

term in nature or repriced frequently. Therefore, their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value.
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29. TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO

In accordance with the Directive 23 of 2016 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, the total
expense ratio of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2018 is 1.41% (2017; 1.45%) which includes 0.31%
(2017;0.27%) representing Government Levy and SECP fee.

30. NON ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER REPORTING DATE

The Board of Directors of the Management Company in its meeting held on July 4, 2018 has proposed a variable
final cash distribution of upto Rs. 5.15 per unit amounting to PKR 166.578 million as cash dividend and Rs. 181.738
million as refund of capital. The financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2018 do not include
the effect of the final distribution which will be accounted for in the financial statements of the Fund for the year
ending June 30, 2019.

31. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Management Company in
their meeting held on August 31, 2018.

32. CORRESPONDING FIGURES
Corresponding figures have been rearranged or reclassified, where necessary, for the purpose of better
presentation. No significant rearrangement or reclassification was made in these financial statements during the
current year.

33. GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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NAME OF FUND HBL Income Fund

NAME OF TRUSTEE Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
NAME OF AUDITOR Deloitte Yousuf Adil, Chartered Accountants.
NAME OF BANKERS Habib Bank Limited

Bank Al-Habib Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
Bank Al Falah Limited

Faysal Bank Limited

Allied Bank Limited

JS Bank Limited

Samba Bank Limited

Zarai Taragiati Bank Limited
Askari Bank Limited

MCB Bank Limited

Soneri Bank Limited

Telenor Bank Microfinance

U Microfinance Bank Limited

The First Microfinance Bank Limited
NRSP Microfinance Bank Limited

Fund Rating A(f) (JCR-VIS)
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HBL INCOME FUND
As at June 30, 2018

Type and Category of Fund

Open end Income Fund

Investment Objective and Accomplishment of Objective

FUND MANAGER'’S REPORT —

The objective of the Fund is to provide a stable stream of income with moderate level of risk by investing in fixed income

securities. The investment objective is achieved.

Benchmark and Performance Comparison with Benchmark

The Fund’s benchmark is average six month KIBOR Offer rate.

The comparison of the fund return with benchmark is given below:

Strategies and Policies employed during the Year

8.00%

7.00%

6.00%

5.00%

4.00%

3.00%

2.00%

Jul- Aug- Sep- Oct- Nov- Dec- Jan- Feb- Mar- Apr- May- Jun-

18

18

18 18 18

e Return of Fund e Benchmark

Month Re:z;rcljof Benchmark
Jun-18 5.61% 6.98%
May-18 6.39% 6.57%
Apr-18 3.04% 6.51%
Mar-18 6.82% 6.50%
Feb-18 4.99% 6.43%
Jan-18 5.69% 6.22%
Dec-17 4.37% 6.20%
Nov-17 4.50% 6.18%
Oct-17 5.07% 6.17%
Sep-17 4.02% 6.16%| 17 17 17 17 17 17 18
Aug-17 2.85% 6.15%
Jul-17 5.02% 6.14%

During the year under review, fund size of HBL Income Fund was reduced to PKR 2,456 million compared to PKR 4,490 million
in June, 2017. During the year, the Fund continued its policy of increasing quality TFCs in its portfolio. Exposure against TFCs
(including Government guaranteed instrument) was increased from 32.20% to 45.4% as on June 30, 2018. The Fund was
further invested in cash at bank and placements which cumulatively accounted for 54.50% of the portfolio on average. During
the year, funds were also invested in TDR placements with Microfinance institutions, commercial papers and Spread

transactions in order to support portfolio accruals.

Asset Allocation

TFC's
45%

Spread
Transactions
3%

Asset Allocation for June 2018

Other
3%

A

Cash & TDRs,
49%

Spread
Transactions,
5%

Commercial
Paper, 3%

TFC's, 32%

Other, 14%

Asset Allocation for June 2017

Cash & TDRs,
46%
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Significant Changes in Asset Allocation during the Year

During the year under review some changes in asset allocation were witnessed. The Fund’s exposure in bank placements were
reduced to 8.29% in June 2018 compared to 19.48% in June 2017 and the same were moved to higher yielding TFCs and
Spread Transactions. The cumulative exposure in Cash and TDRs increased to 49.03% from 45.77% due to changing market
conditions near year-end. Overall weighted average maturity increased from 850 days to 928 days due to increase exposure
in long term debt securities.

Fund Performance

The total income and net income of the Fund was Rs. 265.31 million and Rs. 186.50 million respectively during the year ended
June 30, 2018. The ex-dividend Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit of the Fund was Rs. 106.0146 per unit as on June 30, 2017. The
NAV of the Fund was Rs. 111.2890 per unit as on June 30, 2018 thereby giving an annualized return of 4.98%. During the same
year the benchmark (6 Month KIBOR) return was 6.35%.The size of Fund was Rs. 2.46 billion as on June 30, 2018.

Money Market Review

Interest rate cycle reversed in FY18 as central bank focus diverted towards containing rising twin deficits and in anticipation of
increase in inflation due to lack of fiscal discipline in election times. During the year, secondary market yields of 3, 5 and
10-year PIBs increased by 180, 171 and 86 bps respectively while yields of 3, 6 and 12 month T-Bills increased by 79, 90 and
116 bps respectively. Government of Pakistan raised only PKR 96bn through the PIB auction against a target of PKR 900bn as
eight PIB auctions were scrapped in the year due to lack of interest. The last cut-off yields stood at 7.5000%, 8.4795% and
8.6999% p.a. for 3, 5 and 10-year PIBs respectively. Overall trading in longer tenures remained lackluster due to market
participants’ consensus of increase in interest rates.

During FY18, Government retired PKR 77bn from scheduled banks against borrowing of PKR 179bn during same period last
year due to multiple scrapped PIB Auctions. Meanwhile, Government borrowing from SBP increased by PKR 1,439bn during
the period against PKR 908bn during same period last year. Government largely managed its borrowing requirements through
domestic sources, and raised PKR 16,894bn via T-bills (excluding NCB) compared to the cumulative target of PKR 16,925bn and
maturities of PKR 15,971bn. In the last T-Bill Auction held in Jun-18 no amount was accepted in the 6 and 12 month T-Bills. The
cutoff yield was 6.7596% for the 3 month T-Bills. SBP increased the policy rate by 25bps in January and a further 50bps in May
to 6.50% to control aggregate demand and the current account deficit. Since then the SBP has further increased policy rate by
100bps in Jul-18 MPS. Going forward, we foresee another interest rate hike of 50bps in the calendar year on the back of
increasing inflation expectation and sustainability of current account risks.

Distribution

Subsequent to the year end, the Fund has distributed cash dividend upto Rs. 5.50 per unit for the year ended June 30, 2018,
which reduced the cum-NAV of the Fund as of June 30, 2018 by amount of distribution to Rs. 105.7890 per unit.

Significant Changes in the State of Affairs
There were no significant changes in the state of affairs during the year under review.

Breakdown of Unit Holding by Size

From - To Number of Unit Total Number of Units
(Number of units) Holders Held
1 - 100 267 10,449
101 - 500 129 26,643
501 - 1,000 43 32,539
1,001 — 10,000 224 1,111,318
10,001 - 100,000 194 6,432,781
100,001 — 500,000 15 3,234,131
500,001 - 1,000,000 1 3,234,131
1,000,001 - 5,000,000 1 578,925
5,000,001 and above 1 9,489,919
Total 875 22,072,806
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Unit Splits

There were no unit splits during the year.

Circumstances materially affecting the Interest of Unit Holders
Investments are subject to market risk.

Soft Commission

The Management Company from time to time receives research reports and presentations from brokerage houses.
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PERFORMANCE TABLE -

HBL INCOME FUND
As at June 30, 2018

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Net assets at the period end(Rs'000) 2,456,460 4,490,296 6,726,060 3,376,281 2,768,352 1,947,464
NET ASSETS VALUE PER UNIT AT 30 JUNE - RUPEES
Redemption 111.2890 106.0146 106.0938 13-Apr-00 101.3388 102.6114
Offer 113.1753 107.8115 108.1983 13-Apr-00 101.3388 102.6114
OFFER / REDEMPTION DURING THE PERIOD - RUPEES
Highest offer price per unit 113.1531 112.7930 113.4354 113.5884 104.8113 103.3155
Lowest offer price per unit 107.8570 107.7564 104.9645 101.4359 100.6154 99.1319
Highest redemption price per unit 111.2890 110.9130 111.2291 113.5884 104.8113 103.3155
Lowest redemption price per unit 106.0593 105.9604 104.9645 101.4359 100.6154 99.1319
RETURN (%)
Total return 4.98% 4.64% 6.12% 12.44% 9.91% 7.70%
Income distribution 5.50% 5.00% 5.25% 9.00% 9.00% 7.00%
Capital growth -0.52% -0.36% 0.87% 3.44% 0.91% 0.70%
DISTRIBUTION
First Interim dividend distribution (Rs) - - - - 1.75 1.75
Date of Income Distribution
Second Interim dividend distribution (Rs) - - - - 1.75 1.50
Date of Income Distribution
Third Interim dividend distribution (Rs) - - - - 2.00 1.75
Date of Income Distribution
Final dividend distributation (Rs) 5.50 5.00 5.25 9.00 3.50 2.00

4-Jul-17 20-Jun-17 22-Jun-16 26-Jun-15 Various dates- (As  Various dates- (As

mentioned in mentioned in
Financial Financial
Statements of Statements of
respective year) respective year)

Total dividend distribution for the year/ period (Rs) 5.50 5.00 5.25 9.00 9.00 7.00
AVERAGE RETURNS (% )
Average annual return 1 year 4.98% 4.64% 6.12% 12.44% 9.91% 7.70%
Average annual return 2 year 4.81% 5.39% 9.28% 11.18% 8.81% 10.01%
Average annual return 3 year 5.25% 7.69% 9.49% 10.02% 9.98% 10.01%
Weighted average portfolio during (No. of days) 928 850 372 485 621 475
PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION - (%)
Percentage of Total Assets as at 30 June:
Bank Balances 40.74% 26.29% 48.00% 29.00% 24.00% 19.00%
TFCs 39.92% 32.20% 10.00% 8.00% 13.00% 27.00%
Government Securities 5.48% - 34.00% 62.00% 54.00% 53.00%
Placement with Banks and DFIs 8.29% 19.48% 4.00% 0.00% 7.00% 0.00%
Spread Transaction 2.83% 4.87% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Commercial Paper 0.00% 2.96% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Others Including receivables 2.75% 14% 4.00% 1.00% 2.00% 1.00%

Note:
The Launch date of the Fund is March 15, 2007

Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and unit prices and investment returns may go down, as well as up.
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PROXY VOTING DISCLOURE

Summary of Actual Proxy voted by CIS

HBL Income Fund Meetings Resolutions For Against
Number - - - -
(%ages) 100% 100% -

(h)  AMCdid not participate in shareholders' meetings

Investee Company AGM Meeting Dt EOGM Meeting Dt
Amreli Steels Limited 25-10-2017 N-A
Attock Refinery Limited 19-10-2017 N-A
D G Khan Cement Co.Ltd. 28-10-2017 N-A
Engro Polymer & Chemicals Ltd 29-3-2018 N-A
Fauji Fertilizer Company Ltd 13-3-2018 N-A
Habib Metropolitan Bank Ltd 29-3-2018 N-A
International Steels Limited 26-9-2017 N-A
Nishat Chunian Ltd 23-10-2017 N-A
Oil & Gas Development Co Ltd 24-10-2017 N-A
Pak Elektron Ltd 25-4-2018 N-A
Pakistan Petroleum Ltd 27-10-2017 N-A

The proxy voting policy of the Fund is available on the website of the Management Company and detailed information
regarding actual proxies voted by Management Company in respect of the Fund is also available without charge, upon
request, to all unit holders.
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(fiil  The Mop-Baaking Flsnie Companies {Eviphlisfoment and Regdatinma Rl J000,
ilie Wi -Banking Frizinee Compiiles ind Matifled Eoplie Bogulations, 008 unil the
coeEtmtive docmmens of the Pl

@_!!1......._.._._1
Altab Abmaed THwin
Chpef Txecutiv= Crficer
Cantrnl Diepouiiory Comprany of Pakiatan Lbmtited

Karsehl Seplembes 8, 1018

m Annual Report-2018



Del OlttE- Dalulvie Yasmut &l

Chanaed Accparsanis
i Court, AT, Blick T &R
ECHT, Shphrahe-a-Feins
sl TEISE

LT

Tek  RLI00 2T a5 Ra-Y
Fan!  oFd 031 BS54 1004

e el ivie o

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO
THE UNIT HOLDERS OF HBL INCOME FUND

Report on the Avdit af the Financial Statements
Crainion

iWa have audited the fnanclel staternents of HBL Income Fumd (the fund), which compeise the satement
ol absets gnd Eabiiltias 5 &t June 30, 2018, and the related income statément, stalemaent of comprehamsive
iricome, stetement af movement in unlt bakders’ fund and eash flow statement for the yeer ihen anded,

s notes o tha Nnencial |ht|n-|qm:_:, ineluding & surmimery &f sigefeant sccobnting pelicies.

{0 ‘our apinian, the accompaiying fnanclsl sislements 2 trum and fair Wiew of the fingndal pasition of
the Fund as-at June 309, 2018, and of its finencial parformance, cash flows and transactions for'the vesr
then entded |0 sceerdancs with sccountlng and eportng stondords e appiicable i Pakisten

Basls for Opinian

We conducted our @i in accordanco with Intemstions! Stendards on Auditing (1583} a8 appliceliks in
Pekiston. Dur responalbiities under thosa standards are further deseribed in the Auditors Responsibuibes
for the Apdle of the Pinancial Skslaments section of our report. We s independent al the Fund =nd
Management Company In accordance with the Intarnational Ethics Standerds Board for Accountants' Code
of Ethicy for Professtonsl Accousntants [[ESEA Code) as adogied by the Inctute of Cherlered Acesuntants
ol Pakistan togethar with th ethical requirements et ere relevant m our audit of tha financial statenents
in Pakistan, and we have fulfilied dar other ethical responelbilted in accordenca with these reguerements
and the TE58A Coge. We belleve that the Budlt svidence wi have obtained s sufficent and approoniats Lo
provide 8 basis fer aur opdiisn,

Key Audit Mattars

igey Sudlt matters ara thope matier that, In our professionad judgmant, ware of most significance in our
sipdit of the Ansndsl ststements of the curmmt prergd, These matters were pddressad o the confod of ow
pisdit of the financial statements s58 whels, gnd in feeming our opinion thereoh, &nd we 8o.nol pravide &
separale pinion on thess matters.

&, Na, Kay audit matt Hmu—mm:’lﬂﬂﬂmdln

i Valuation and existances of investments
) we performed the foliawing steps
As discloged | note & to the Mranciel statemants, during cue audie of Investmants:

Investments amounted o Rs. 1,221 billlan &g ar

Juns 35, 2018, + independant tosting of valuetions by
wsing the rates detarmined by e
Thisa investments represent & sigrificant itam on mmﬂ Fund m&m“
tha statemsnt of assets and Mobiitios. The Fund h“”""ﬂiﬁ_ﬁ el
Invests principally In Term Finance certificates’ and ingiperofuk m"“’““;mm il
thekt valustion and ndnj:m 5 & signdficant area thet Incema W
|| suming aur sudi. There is & risk that Sppropriste
T,
lurcanr ai
[ Py i om @ b Ll
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5. Na.

Koy nudit maiiers

How the matiers were sddressed in

TWHW“MHMWMMEW
value,

Further, the Fund may have nduded investments in
I fnanclal statements which wers not owned by
Faifi,

during the year; and

Bapository Company (COC) sceaunt
records;

perfarming purchases anif sales
testing on o ssmple of oaden madn
during the yesr to shinin evidence
regerding mouernert af certiflcates

=ny differencas ideniifed during our
testhng thal were over aur
aczmptabie threshald were
Imvestigated further.

Change in accounting policy &2 & result of
amendments in Nor-Sanking Flnance
cmnr-mwmnqmm

Al disciooad in note 4.7, {o the finonoal stotemants,

‘Bn August 43, F017, SECP le=ued 580 na,

TSE[11200T whisnky carthln amsndmants wars
rmace n the MNon-Banking Finance Companles and
himtited Entities Ragilation, 2008 {the NEAD
fegulation). Such amendmants Intradisced
definltion of Elmment of [rcome, sod reuirnd certain
adcitinna) giscipsores in Incoma shateansnt gnd
statesinent af moversEnt 1 it holders” fund
together with removal of ruiressent o preent
distribution statement separabaly.

The abovemsntioned amendments requirs

-ummmmmumm garaisnting,

nitEton and discinaurs of tha Elarmant of
neomig' bn the financial statements, which have

biesn applied &5 & chenga in accounting pollcy
prospsctively in ncoondanes with the clarfication
Issued by tha Securitiss and Sxchange Cammisslan
aof Faiialan, Cormedertng the significance of the
mbove fockors, we have treatsd thess chamges-as
Koy Audle Maiter.

T oedier ba addrese the metier wo
have:

Hakl discusslans with monagemant
regarding the amsndinsnts mads in
the NBFC Reguinbons, the resulting
changas requlead In the finandal
skatmmeants and how the systems
wirn updaied o catar for the
nreendmants;

Gibtained account holder wie
movemant of adl unit hoiders of the
Fupe 2nd for a sample of unit
holders, verifled the movemant in
terms aF units and value Jincleding
et msset vabia gor ut) by
chisciiing riing dacumants to
ermirg that slement of fmoame snd
income adready pakd on units
redesmed |5 sccurate. Aisg
prapared quantitative reconciilabion
af unlts raported; and

Cheekpd adequacy of presentation
and disclosws requirgments

including slement of Income n n
thi financial stalenfents 1 per the
teguirssnents of Scheduls V of the
NEFC Regulations.

Irarmation Other than the Financlal Statements and Auditor's Report Thareon

Manpgemant

Company i responsible for the omer informetlon. The otfer nfemation comprises: the

infermation inckided I the annnl mport, but doss pot inciuds the fasncle stetements and our suditor's
raport thereo,

T
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fiur oplnisa o the Oroncla) sietsmants daes nok cover (e obher information and we da not express any
form of assurance condusion thareon.

Iri ecmenEctiiey with sur auii of the finandal statements, our respansibiity s to read the ather Informatian
misd, in dolng 8o, congider whethar the other Infgrmation s materally Inconsissant with the fnanclal
akataments or our knowiedge obtalned in the sadlt or othansiie appesss to ke materislly misotated, I,
based on the work wy heve pedfarmed, we monciude that thers 18 o makerial misstatemant of this ather
nformation, we sre requird 0 report that fack, \We howe nathing B report in this regard.

Rasponsibiilties of Management Company and Those Charged with Governance for the Finanelal
Etatemants

Management Company & responaibie for the preparacen and f2ir presantation of the financal sistemanis
in pegardance with sccaunting and reporting standards g apalicabds |n Paldaten, and fae sich Intarmul
convtrol 25 the Managoment Company debermined |8 necessary b0 enahle the pregansfion of Nnapciel
atmtempnts that ard fres freom msiarial misstatemant, whether due i fraud ar e

In prepering the fAnancls statermmnts, Marsgemant Compasny |s raspensinln for assessing the fund's abilicy
to continue Ba B galng concern;, disdasing, a8 spglicebis. martiars refaind to golng concem and usng tha
going concarn basts of sccounting viiess Management Company lther infencs to lgquidate the Furd or to
coasn operatdors, or hee no realistic alfermetive bBut (o da 0.

Thase Charged with Gavernance of tha Managomant Compamy are responsible for oversesing the Fund’s
financial reparting process.

Auditor's Rnsponsibliites for the Audit of the Finencal Statements

Dur ohjectives &= i pbialn (easoisbie assurance about whethar the finoncial stalesnents a8 & Whise &re
Free from material missEtement, whetier due 0 fraud or emoar, and to lspues an sudline's repart Bhat
inetudes our oplnion. Ressunable assurarcs is @ high jevel of pssursnon, but i not o guarahtes that an
audit comducted in sccordance with [SAs =3 sppllcsbie n Pakiszan will slweys deiect 8 matorial
lEstatamant whan |t exlsts, Misttatements can antse frorh fraud or erar end dra considaresd material i,
individuslly o i the agpregato, thoy could rmessnobly be expected (o Influsncs the sconomic daclsiorns of
uaors Telen on tha basis af hase Meanclal salements. '

An pait of mh 0o In scoordince with [5As a3 applicable in Pallstan, we askarcse professional judgment
and msintEin grafessioml rrapticism throughout the audit. We sea

" fdontify snd nesess the sk of mateds migstatamans of tha firanclsl statorments, whether due to
friid or error, design and perfirm sedit procedures responsive to hoee ncks, and chtcnln: sedit
syldedca that is sufficient and appropriaie to provide & besiz for car oaitlan, Tha resk af net detecting
B materlnl misstatement resulting from fraud 18 highar than for ane resislting frem arear, o5 fraod

iy Inivalve collission, fargery, intentiosal omissions, misrpprosentatians, or the override af ntermal
Eamtres,

" Céatain mn underatEnding of intermal control relevant o the sudit in order $a dasign aut procedores
that arg sppropriste in the direumstances, but nok for the puarpaoe af EEprEysing an oEinion oo The
effectivansss of the Memagiemuent Campany's int=rnal conbed,

« Eusluale the sppropristeness of accounting polices used snd the ressonsbleress of accounting
mEtimates and related disciagures made by Managreent Company.

. Canclisle on the agpropoatenass of Mansgamen; Compeny's use of tha going concem hesld of
accounting Bnd; based on e audit evidence chtminad, whethar-a malers: uncertainty cemts related
to avents or condEions thal may cast slgrfcant doubt an the Fund's ability to continge as a golng
cancem. If we conclode that & msteial unesrtalnty exlsts, wn arm required to drss attention (0our

LT
Dislasriim Pavmba Veloiopti ilamad
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ayditars repart o the relafed diedaseres in the Mnancial siptements or, II e dadosisfes are
insdaguate, o modify our opinfop. Our conclusions b bassd on the Budlc avidence chtained ug o
this date of our Tudiine's report. However, futuhe svents or condibions miry cacse the Fund fo ceass
ta continus 28 8 galng sancem.

- valuats the owarall presentslicn, structura and contert of the fnencal statoments; mcuding the
dcigirey, and whether the fnancel statements rapreaant thie undarying fransactions and events
ima manner that achigves falr preaantation.

e commisnicaty with Thiss Charged with Sovernonce of the Mensgement Company regarding, among
other matt=rs, the planned scope and tming of the audit and significont sudit firdings, (nduding sy
gignificant dafizienciss in kel coniesd thed e Mankify dering our audle

We 3lso provide Thosa Charged with Governance of the Management Company with a statement Lhat we
have comyplled with retavant sthicol requisemants regording indepenidance, anl to carmmunicate with tham
&l risstonships and other matters thot may reasonnbly be thought ko bag on aur ndegardanon, and where
dpplizable, raloted salfeguards

From the matters communiested with Thoss Charged with Governance of the Management Chmpany, wi
fotarming thase rrstters that were of most significence in fe audit of the Anoncls| ststsments af the
current parind ond are therefore the key sudit maters. We describe these matters in our auditor's repart
unless law or régulation precludes public disclosors aboub Bhe matter of when, inoextrernely rars
plrcumstances, wa determine that § matter shoukd fak be commiunicatsd in oud rapor because the pdverss

eansedustices of Gakng so would reasoaably be axpactd te cubweigh the public interest benefits of such
commmuication

Rapurt on Other Legal and Regulstory Requiraments

Ir Bur oiEnian, e Aaanoal statermants have been prepared In scoordance wikh the ralevant provisioos af
the Han-Banking Finsnds Companies (Establishment and Aogislatian) Rules, 3003 and Non-Banking Financg
Companies ond Molified Entities Aggidations, 2000

Tha engagement partner on the audit resiiting b this ndependent auditor's report & Mena Sadin,

Chartered
Plnce: Karach
Dte Septomper 18, JO10

e =

lisdaitis Tt Taterilas Lisned
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HBL Income Fund

Statement of Assets and Liabilities

As at June 30, 2018

2018 2017
Note = - (Rupees in '000)----------
Assets
Bank balances 5 1,242,036 881,829
Investments 6 1,221,606 2,718,877
Accrued mark-up 7 21,696 43,405
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 8 47,841 188,054
Receivable against sale of investment 9 24,984 733,524
Total assets 2,558,163 4,565,689
Liabilities
Payable to Management Company 10 4,399 8,335
Payable to the Trustee 11 349 498
Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 12 2,742 4,291
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 13 50,424 62,269
Payable against purchase of investment 43,789 -
Total liabilities 101,703 75,393
Net assets 2,456,460 4,490,296
Unit holders' fund (as per statement attached) 2,456,460 4,490,296
Contingencies and commitments 14
--------- Number of units---------
Number of units in issue 15 22,072,806 42,355,455
Rupees
Net assets value per unit 4.8 111.2890 106.0146
The annexed notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Income Fund

Income Statement
For the year ended June 30, 2018

2018 2017
Note =~ = - (Rupees in '000)----------
Income
Mark-up / return on investments 16 104,489 152,964
Capital gain on sale of investments - net 241 9,611
Mark-up on deposits with banks 17 141,583 187,309
Dividend Income 16,647 20,783
Unrealised gain / (loss) on revaluation of investments carried at
fair value through profit or loss - held-for-trading - net 2,352 (12)
Total Income 265,312 370,655
Expenses
Remuneration of the Management Company 10.1 58,367 96,972
Remuneration of the Trustee 11.1 4,472 6,050
Annual fee of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 12.1 2,742 4,291
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services 10.3 3,656 5,719
Settlement and bank charges 4,780 2,633
Auditors' remuneration 18 396 340
Fee and subscription 397 310
Printing charges 194 345
Total Expenses 75,004 116,660
190,308 253,995
Element of loss and capital losses
included in prices of units issued less those in units redeemed - (63,654)
Reversal of provision for Workers' Welfare Fund 13.2 - 28,170
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 13.2 (3,806) (17,449)
(3,806) 10,721
Net income for the year before taxation 186,502 201,062
Taxation 19 - -
Net income for the year after taxation 186,502 201,062
Allocation of net income for the year
Income already paid on redemption of units 77,201
Accounting income available for distribution:
- Relating to capital gains 2,063
- Excluding capital gains 107,238
109,301
186,502
Earnings per unit 20
The annexed notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Income Fund

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended June 30, 2018

Net income for the year after taxation 186,502 201,062

Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to Income Stataement

Unrealised loss on re-measurement of investments (12,406) (29,754)
classified as available-for-sale

Reclassification adjustments relating to available for sale 1,021 23,546
financial assets disposed of during the year

Total other comprehensive income for the year (11,385) (6,208)

Total comprehensive income for the year 175,117 194,854

The annexed notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer

Chief Executive Officer

Director
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HBL Income Fund

Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2018

Net assets at beginning of the year

Issuance of 8,770,467 units (2017: 58,376,138 units)
- Capital Value (at net asset value per units at

the beginning of the year
- Element of income

Redemption of 29,053,116 units (2017: 79,417,982 units)
- Capital Value (at net asset value per units at

the beginning of the year"
- Amount paid out of element of income

relating to net income for the year after taxation

Element of income and capital gains included in prices
of units issued less those in units redeemed
Distribution during the year

Net income for the year after taxation

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the period

Net assets at end of the year

Undistributed income brought forward

- Realised
- Unrealised

Accounting income available for distribution
- Relating to capital gains
- Excluding capital gains

Element of loss and capital losses included in prices
of units issued less those in units redeemed
Distribution during the year

Undistributed income carried forward
Undistributed income carrited forward

- Realised
- Unrealised

Net assets value per unit at beginning of the year

Net assets value per unit at end of the year

The annexed notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Financial Officer

m Annual Report-2018

2018 2017
Capital  Undistributed Unrealised Total Capital  Undistributed Unrealised Total
value income  (loss) / income value income  (loss) / income
of investment of investment
Rupees in '000'
4,362,025 117,658 10,613 4,490,296 - - 6,726,060
929,798 - - 929,798 - - 6,207,980
20,890 - - 20,890 - - -
950,688 - - 950,688 - - 6,207,980
(3,080,081) - - | (3,080,081) - -1 (8,506,659)
(2,359) (77,201) - (79,560) - - -
(3,082,440 (77,201) - (3,159,641) - - (8,506,659)
- - - - - - 63,654
. . - B - - (195,593)
- 186,502 - 186,502 - - 201,062
- - (11,385) (11,385) - - (6,208)
B 186,502 (11,385) 175,117 - B 194,854
2,230,273 226,959 (772) 2,456,460 - - 4,490,296
117,670 240,413
1) -
117,658 240,413
2,063 -
107,238 -
109,301 201,062
- (128,224)
- (195,593)
226,959 117,658
224,607 117,670
2,352 (12)
226,959 117,658
(Rupees)
106.0146 106.0938
111.2890 106.0146
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Executive Officer Director



HBL Income Fund

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended June 30, 2018

2018 2017
Note = —--meeeee (Rupees in '000)----------
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income for the year 186,502 201,062
Adjustments:
Return / mark-up on:
- Bank profits (141,583) (187,309)
- Investments (104,489) (152,964)
- Gain on sale of investments - net (241) (9,611)
- Dividend income (16,647) (20,783)
Unrealised (gain) / loss (2,352) 12
Element of loss and capital losses included
in prices of units issued less those in units redeemed - net - 63,654
Reversal of provision for Workers' Welfare Fund - (28,170)
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 3,806 17,449
(75,004) (116,660)
Decrease / (increase) in assets
Investments - net 2,240,808 (166,983)
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 136,747 76,755
2,377,555 (90,228)
Decrease in liabilities
Payable to Management Company (3,936) (7,053)
Payable to the Trustee (149) (120)
Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (1,549) (553)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (15,651) (19,722)
(21,285) (27,448)
Bank profit received 144,556 176,124
Markup on investments received 123,225 157,154
Dividend Income received 20,113 17,317
Net cash generated from operating activities 2,569,160 116,259
Cash flows from financing activities
Amount received on issue of units 950,688 6,207,980
Payment against redemption of units (3,159,641) (8,506,659)
Cash dividend paid - (195,593)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,208,953) (2,494,272)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 360,207 (2,378,013)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 881,829 3,259,842
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 5 1,242,036 881,829
The annexed notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Income Fund

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

1. LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

HBL Income Fund (the Fund) was established under a Trust Deed, dated September 06, 2006, executed between
HBL Asset Management Limited as the Management Company and Central Depository Company of Pakistan
Limited (CDC) as the Trustee. The Fund was authorised by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP) as a unit trust scheme on July 25, 2006.

The Management Company of the Fund has been registered as a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) under the
NBFC Rules, 2003 and has obtained the requisite license from the SECP to undertake Asset Management Services.
The registered office of the Management Company is situated at 7th Floor, Emerald Tower, G-19, Block 5, Main
Clifton Road, Clifton, Karachi.

The Fund is an open ended mutual fund and offers units for public subscription on a continuous basis. The units are
transferable and can also be redeemed by surrendering to the Fund. The Fund is listed on the Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited. The units of the Fund were initially offered for public subscription at par from March 15, 2007 to
March 17, 2007.

The principal activity of the Fund is to make investments in fixed income securities. Other avenues of investments
include ready future arbitrage in listed securities and transactions under Continuous Funding System.

JCR-VIS Credit Rating Agency has assigned management quality rating of 'AM2+' to the Management Company and
the fund stability rating of A(f) to the Fund.

Title to the assets of the Fund are held in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as trustee

of the Fund.
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIIIA of the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984; and

- Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules), Non-Banking
Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations) and requirements of the
Trust Deed.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed differ from the IFRS
Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed have been
followed.

2.2 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except that certain
investments are measured at fair value.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the fund's functional and presentation currency.
2.4 Use of judgments and estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards requires the
management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. It also requires the management to exercise judgement in application of its accounting

policies. The estimates, judgements and associated assumptions are based on the historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are
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HBL Income Fund

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

3.1

3.2

3.2.1

recognised in the year in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that year, or in the year of
revision and future years if the revision affects both current and future years.

Areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where estimates and assumptions are
significant to the financial statements as a whole are as follows:

(i) classification and valuation of financial assets (notes 4.2.1.1 and 4.2.1.4); and
(ii) impairment of financial assets (note 4.2.1.5)
NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS / AMENDMENTS AND IFRS INTERPRETATIONS

New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the year ended June 30,
2018

The following amendments are effective for the year ended June 30, 2018. These standards, interpretations and the
amendments are either not relevant to the Fund's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the
Fund's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective from accounting
period beginning on or after:

Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' January 01, 2017
- Amendments as a result of the disclosure initiative

Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' January 01, 2017
- Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of
IFRSs, which are also not relevant to the Fund.

New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are not yet effective
The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, beginning on
or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, interpretations and the amendments (except
IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments') are either not relevant to the Fund's operations or are not expected to have
significant impact on the Fund's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective from accounting
period beginning on or after:

IFRS 15 'Revenue from contracts with customers' - This standard will
supersede IAS 18, IAS 11, IFRIC 13, 15 and 18 and SIC 31 upon its effective date.  July 01, 2018

IFRS 16 'Leases' - This standard will supersede

IAS 17 'Leases' upon its effective date. January 01, 2019
Amendments to IFRS 2 'Share-based Payment' - Clarification on

the classification and measurement of share-based payment transactions January 01, 2018
IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' July 01, 2018

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - Amendments
regarding prepayment features with negative compensation
and modifications of financial liabilities January 01, 2019
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Effective from accounting
period beginning on or after:

IFRS 4 'Insurance Contracts': Amendments An entity choosing to apply the overlay approach

regarding the interaction of IFRS 4 and IFRS 9. retrospectively to qualifying financial assets does
so when it first applies IFRS 9. An entity choosing
to apply the deferral approach does so for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

Amendments to IFRS 10 'Consolidated Financial Effective from accounting period beginning on or
Statements' and IAS 28 'Investments in Associates after a date to be determined. Earlier application
and Joint Ventures' - Sale or contribution of assets is permitted.

between an investor and its associate or joint

venture

Effective from accounting
period beginning on or after:

Amendments to IAS 28 'Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures'
- Amendments regarding long-term interests in associates and joint ventures January 01, 2019

Amendments to IAS 19 'Employee Benefits' - Plan Amendment,
Curtailment or Settlement January 01, 2019

Amendments to IAS 40 'Investment Property': Clarification on
transfers of property to or from investment property January 01, 2018

IFRIC 22 'Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration':

Provides guidance on transactions where consideration against

non-monetary prepaid asset / deferred income is denominated in

foreign currency January 01, 2018

IFRIC 23 'Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments":

Clarifies the accounting treatment in relation to determination

of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax

credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments

under IAS 12 'Income Taxes' January 01, 2019

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs. Which are also not expected to have
material impact on financial reporting of the Fund.

3.2.2 IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' Impact Assessment

3.2.2.1 IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' was issued on July 24, 2017. This standard is adopted locally by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan and is effective from accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2018.

Key requirements of IFRS 9 are as follows;
Classification and measurement of financial assets

- All recognized financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS9 are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value.

- Debt investments that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.

- Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms that give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding are
generally measured at fair value through other comprehensive income "FVTOCI".

- All other debt investments and equity investments are measured at their fair value at the end of subsequent
accounting periods.

Annual Report-2018



HBL Income Fund

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

- In addition, under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading nor contingent consideration recognized by an
acquirer in a business combination) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally
recognized in profit or loss.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS 9
requires as follows;

- The amount of change in the fair value of a financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of such changes in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.

- Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability's credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss. Under IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the financial liability designated as fair
value through profit or loss is presented in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under IAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit
losses are recognized.

SECP through its SCD/AMCW/RS/MUFAP/2017-148 dated November 21, 2017 have deferred the applicability of
above provision requirements in relation to debt securities for mutual funds.

3.2.2.2 Impact assessment

Based on the analysis of Fund's financial assets and liabilities as at June 30, 2018 considering facts and
circumstances that exists at that date, the Management Company have assessed the impact of IFRS 9 to the Fund's
financial statements as follows;

Term finance certificates and equity securities (ready buy future sale transactions) classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss - held for trading qualify for designation as measured at fair value through profit or
loss upon application of IFRS 9.

Financial assets classified as loans and receivables are held with a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principle outstanding. These
financial assets will qualify for designation as measured at amortised cost and will continue to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost upon application of IFRS 9.

Term finance certificates classified as financial assets at 'available-for-sale' are to be measured at fair value through
profit or loss upon application of IFRS 9 with value changes to be recognised in profit or loss instead of other
comprehensive income. The change in fair value attributed to these financial assets amounting to Rs. 11.385 million
during the current year would be recognised in income statement under IFRS 9.

Other financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost will continue to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost upon application of IFRS 9.

3.23 Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) has also issued the following standards which have not been adopted locally by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan:

- IFRS 1 — First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

- IFRS 14 — Regulatory Deferral Accounts
- IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts
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4.1

4.2

4.2.1

4.2.1.1

4.2.1.2

4.2.1.3

Change in policy in relation to preparation of income statement and statement of comprehensive income

International Accounting Standard (IAS) 1 Presentation of Financial Statements allows an entity to prepare either
two performance statements i.e. income statement and statement of comprehensive income, or one performance
statement only i.e. income statement and statement of comprehensive income (showing both items of income or
loss for the period and items of other comprehensive income). The Fund, with effect from July 01, 2017, has
changed its policy with regard to preparation of income statement and other comprehensive income and opted to
prepare two separate performance statements i.e. "income statement" and "statement of comprehensive income"
showing separately both income or loss for the year and items of other comprehensive income in separate
statements.

This change has no impact on the items of income or loss or other comprehensive income recognized in prior year
except that items of other comprehensive income previously presented under "statement of income statement and

other comprehensive income" in single statement are now presented within "income statement" and "statement
of comprehensive income" separately.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with banks and short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of assets and liabilities
at cost.

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Classification

The management determines the appropriate classification of its financial assets in accordance with the
requirements of International Accounting Standard 39 (IAS 39), "Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement" at the time of purchase of financial assets and re-evaluates this classification on a regular basis. The
classification depends upon the purpose for which the financial assets are acquired. The financial assets of the Fund
are currently categorised as follows:

a) Investments at fair value through profit or loss - held-for-trading

An investment that is acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short-term fluctuations in
prices is classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - held-for-trading.

b) Loans and receivables

These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market.

c) Available for sale
These are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available for sale or are not classified as
(a) loans and receivables (b) held-to-maturity investments, or (c) financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss. These are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time which may be sold in response to the needs
for liquidity or change in price.

Regular way contracts

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date - the date on which the Fund
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given including the

transaction cost associated with the acquisition, except in case of "financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss", in which case the transaction costs are charged to 'income statement'.
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4.2.14

4.2.1.5

Subsequent measurement
a) Financial assets classified as 'fair value through profit or loss - held-for-trading'

Subsequent to initial measurement, financial assets classified as 'fair value through profit or loss -
held-for-trading' are valued as follows:

Basis of valuation of equity securities (ready buy future sale transactions)

The investment of the Fund in equity securities is valued using quoted market prices obtained from Pakistan
Stock Exchange Limited at each reporting date.

Net gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of 'fair value through profit or loss - held-for-trading'
financial assets are recognised under operating income in the 'Income statement'.

Basis of valuation of term finance certificates

The investment of the funds in term finance certificates are valued on the basis of market prices published by
MUFAP in accordance with circular no. 33 of 2012 issued by Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Net gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of 'fair value through profit or loss - held-for-trading'
financial assets are recognised under operating income in the 'Income statement'.

b) Loans and receivables

Subsequent to initial recognition financial assets classified as 'loans and receivables' are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses are also recognised in the 'income statement' when financial assets carried at amortised cost are
derecognised or impaired.

c) Available for sale
Subsequent to initial measurement, financial assets classified as 'available for sale' are valued as follows:
Basis of valuation of government securities

The investment of the Fund in government securities is valued on the basis of PKRV rates published by Reuters
in accordance with Circular no. 33 of 2012 issued by Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan, whereas
those in term finance certificates are valued on the basis of market prices published by MUFAP in accordance
with circular no. 33 of 2012 issued by Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Net gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of 'available for sale' financial assets are recognised as
'other comprehensive income' in the Statement of Comprehensive Income until these are derecognised or
impaired. At this time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised as 'other comprehensive income' is
transferred to income before taxation as capital gain / (loss).

Basis of valuation of term finance certificates

The investment of the funds in term finance certificates are valued on the basis of market prices published by
MUFAP in accordance with circular no. 33 of 2012 issued by Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Impairment

The Management Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that the Fund’s
financial assets or a group of financial assets are impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
such assets is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying value of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount.

For financial assets classified as 'loans and receivables', a provision for impairment is established when there is
objective evidence that the Fund will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms. The
provision against these amounts is made as per the provisioning policy duly formulated and approved by the Board
of Directors of the Management Company in accordance with the requirements of the SECP.
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4.2.1.6

4.2.2

4.2.3

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. These are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired.
Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Statement of Assets and
Liabilities when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made. Provisions are regularly reviewed and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate.

Taxation

The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than ninety percent of its accounting income for the year,
as reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, is distributed in cash to the unit holders.

The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of section 113 (minimum tax) and section 113C (Alternative Corporate
Tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

The Fund does not account for deferred tax in these financial statements as the Fund intends to continue availing
the tax exemption in future years by distributing in cash at least ninety percent of its accounting income for the year
as reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, to its unit holders.

Proposed distributions

Distributions declared subsequent to the reporting date are considered as non-adjusting events and are recognised
in the financial statements in the period in which such distributions are declared.

Issue and redemption of units

Units issued are recorded at the offer price, determined by the Management Company for the applications received
by the distributors during business hours on that day. The offer price represents the net assets value per unit as of
the close of the business day plus the allowable sales load, provision for transaction costs and any provision for
duties and charges, if applicable.

Units redeemed are recorded at the redemption price, applicable to units for which the distributors receive
redemption applications during business hours of that day. The redemption price represents the net assets value
per unit as of the close of the business day less any back-end load (if applicable), any duties, taxes, charges on
redemption and any provision for transaction costs, if applicable. Redemption of units is recorded on acceptance of
application for redemption.

Element of income / loss and capital gains / losses included in prices of units issued less those in units redeemed

The Fund has followed the requirements of SRO 756 (I) 2017 dated August 3, 2017 read with NBFC regulations,
2008 in the preparation of these financial statements as follows:

- element of income has been determined as the difference between net assets value on the issuance or
redemption date, as the case maybe, of units and the net asset value at the beginning of the accounting period;
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- presented distributable income in statement of movement In unitholders’ fund ; and

- presented allocation of net income available for distribution relating to capital gains and excluding capital gains
in statement of movement In unitholders’ fund

Amendment in the NBFC Regulations in the current year

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan through its SRO 756(1)/2017 dated August 3, 2017 has made
certain amendments in the NBFC Regulations. The notification includes a definition and explanation relating to
"element of income" and excludes the element of income from the expression "accounting income" as described
in Regulation 63 (amount distributable to unit holders) of the NBFC Regulations. As per the notification, element of
income represents the difference between net assets value per unit on the issuance or redemption date, as the
case may be, of units and the net assets value per unit at the beginning of the relevant accounting period. Further,
the revised regulations also specify that element of income is a transaction of capital nature and the receipt and
payment of element of income shall be taken to unit holders' fund. However, to maintain the same ex-dividend net
asset value of all units outstanding on the accounting date, net element of income contributed on issue of units
lying in unit holders fund will be refunded on units in the same proportion as dividend bears to accounting income
available for distribution. Furthermore, the revised regulations also require certain additional disclosures with
respect to 'Income Statement' and 'Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund', whereas disclosure with
respect to 'Distribution Statement' has been deleted in the revised regulations.

Previously, an equalisation account called the 'element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in
prices of units issued less those in units redeemed' was created, in order to prevent the dilution of per unit income
and distribution of income already paid out on redemption. The net element of income / (loss) and capital gains /
(losses) relating to units issued and redeemed during the accounting period which pertained to unrealised
appreciation / (diminution) held in the Unit Holder's Fund was recorded in a separate account and any amount
remaining in this reserve account at the end of the accounting period (whether gain or loss) was included in the
amount available for distribution to the unitholders. The remaining portion of the net element of income / (loss)
and capital gains / (losses) relating to units issued and redeemed during an accounting period was recognised in the
Income Statement.

As required by IAS 8: 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors', a change in accounting
policy requires retrospective application as if that policy had always been applied. However, the Management
Company has applied the above changes in accounting policy, including the additional disclosures requirements in
the 'Income Statement' and 'Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund', prospectively from July 1, 2017 as
required by SECP vide its email dated February 8, 2017. Accordingly, corresponding figures have not been restated.
The ‘Distribution Statement’ for the comparative period has not been presented as it has been deleted as a result
of the amendments made in the NBFC Regulations the aforementioned SRO issued by the SECP.

Had the element of income been recognised as per the previous accounting policy, the income of the Fund would
have been lower by Rs 58.67 million. However, the change in accounting policy does not have any impact on the
'Cash flow Statement’, the 'net assets attributable to the unit holders' and 'net asset value per unit' as shown in the
'Statement of Assets and Liabilities' and 'Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund'. The change has resulted
in inclusion of certain additional disclosures / new presentation requirements in the 'Income Statement' and
'Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund which have been incorporated in these statements.

4.8 Net assets value per unit

The net asset value (NAV) per unit as disclosed in the statement of assets and liabilities is calculated by dividing the
net asset of the Fund by the number of units in issue at the year end.

4.9 Revenue recognition

- Realised capital gains / (losses) arising on sale of investments are included operating income in the 'income
statement' on the date at which the transaction takes place.

- Mark-up / return on Government securities, bank profits and investment in debt securities are recognized on a
time apportionment basis using the effective interest method.

- Unrealised gains / (losses) arising on re-measurement of investments classified as 'financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss' are included in the income statement. Unrealised gains / (losses) arising on
re-measurement of investments classified as available-for-sale (AFS) are included in the Statement of
comprehensive income in the year in which they arise.
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- Dividend income from equity securities is recognised when right to receive dividend is established.
4.10 Expenses

All expenses including NAV based expenses (namely management fee, trustee fee and annual fee payable to the
SECP) are recognised as expenses in the 'income statement and other comprehensive income' on a time
apportionment basis using the effective interest method.

411 Derivatives

Derivative instruments are initially recognised at fair value and subsequent to initial measurement each derivative
instrument is remeasured to its fair value and the resultant gain or loss is recognised in the income statement and
other comprehensive income. Derivatives with positive fair values (unrealised gains) are included in other assets
and derivatives with negative fair values (unrealised losses) are included in other liabilities in the statement of
assets and liabilities.

2018 2017
Note ~  --—--—-- (Rupees in '000)----------
5. BANK BALANCES
Balances with bank in:
- Saving accounts 5.1 1,032,036 881,829
Term deposit receipt (TDR) 5.2 210,000 -
1,242,036 881,829
5.1 This represents bank accounts held with different banks. Mark-up rates on these accounts range between 4.10% -
7.50% per annum.
5.2 This represents term deposit receipt which will mature on September 27, 2018 and carries profit at 8.60% (June 30,
2017: 6.8% to 8.00%) per annum.
2018 2017
Note = ------mme- (Rupees in '000)----------
6. INVESTMENTS
Available for sale
- Term finance certificates - listed 6.1.1 - 301,041
- Term finance certificates and sukuk bonds - unlisted 6.1.2 336,779 1,170,083
Fair value through profit or loss - held-for-trading
- Term finance certificates - listed 6.2.1 391,551 -
- Term finance certificates and sukuk bonds - unlisted 6.2.2 421,570 -
- Government securities 6.3 - -
- Investment in ready / future - spread transaction 6.4 71,706 222,649
Loans and receivables
- Term deposit receipt (TDR) - 890,000
- Commercial paper 6.5 - 135,104
1,221,606 2,718,877
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6.1 Available for sale investments
All Term Finance Certificates and Sukuk bonds have a face value of Rs. 5,000 each unless stated otherwise.

6.1.1 Term Finance Certificates - Listed

Market value as a

Number of certificates Market
lue / percentage of
Name of the Sales] value ;
Investee Company As at Purchases ales Asat  Carryingvalue
. Matured as at Total Net
July 1, during during the June 30, Investments Assets
2017 the year & 2018 June 30,
year 2018
--------------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------===nmmmmeenemnaane
Financial Services
Saudi Pak Leasing Company
Limited - note 6.1.3 * 2,000 - - 2,000 - - -
2,000 - - 2,000 - - -
Technology and Communication
Worldcall Telecom Limited -
note 6.1.4 * 23,750 - - 23,750 - - -
23,750 - - 23,750 - - -
Commercial Banks
MCB Bank Limited
(Formerly NIB Bank Limited) 43,200 - 43,200 - - - -
43,200 - 43,200 - - - -
Fertilizer
Fatima Fertilizer Company Limited 17,517 - 17,517 - - - -
17,517 - 17,517 - - - -
Total 86,467 - 60,717 25,750 - - -
As at June 30, 2017 25,750 67,717 7,000 86,467 301,041 11.07% 6.70%
Cost of investments as at June 30, 2018 53,317
Cost of investments as at June 30, 2017 297,365

* In case of debt securities against which a provision has been made, these are carried at amortised cost less provision. For non-performing
securities, market value / valuation by MUFAP is not available.

6.1.2 Term Finance Certificates and Sukuk bonds - Unlisted

Market value as a

Number of certificates Market ercentage of
Name of the v?lue / . P ¢
Investee Company As at Purchases Sales / Asat  Carryingvalue
. Matured as at Total Net
July 1, during . June 30,
2017 the year during the 2018 June30, Investments  Assets
year 2018

Commercial Banks

JS Bank Limited (note 6.2.3) 46,000 - 37,550 8,450 42,181 3.45% 1.72%
Habib Bank Limited 2,710 - 2,710 - - - -
Bank of Punjab ** 2,400 - 1,000 1,400 139,846 11.45% 5.69%
Bank Al Habib Limited 22,280 - 22,280 - - - -
73,390 - 63,540 9,850 182,027 14.90% 7.41%
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Market value as a

Number of certificates Market
lue / percentage of
Name of the Sales] value .
Investee Company As at Purchases ales Asat  Carryingvalue
. Matured as at Total Net
July 1, during during the June 30, June30, Investments Assets
2017 the year & 2018 une 39,
year 2018
--------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------===nnmmmmemmnmeans
Chemicals
Ghani Gases Limited ** 1,200 - 1,000 200 15,992 1.31% 0.65%
Agritech Limited - note 6.1.7 * 2,000 - - 2,000 - - -
3,200 - 1,000 2,200 15,992 1.31% 0.65%
Multiutlities
WAPDA TFC 60,200 - 5,040 55,160 138,760 11.36% 5.65%
60,200 - 5,040 55,160 138,760 11.36% 5.65%
Others
New Allied Electronic Industries
(Private) Limited note 6.1.5* 9,000 - - 9,000 - - -
New Allied Electronic Industries
(Private) Limited - Sukuk note 6.1.5* 9,000 - - 9,000 - - -
18,000 - - 18,000 - - -
Total 154,790 - 69,580 85,210 336,779 27.57% 13.71%
As at June 30, 2017 164,000 94,830 104,040 154,790 1,170,083 43.04% 26.06%
Cost of investments as at June 30, 2018 408,720
Cost of investments as at June 30, 2017 1,287,632

*In case of debt securities against which a provision has been made, these are carried at amortised cost less provision. For non-performing
securities market value / valuation by MUFAP is not available.

**These TFCs have face value of Rs. 100,000 per TFC.

6.1.3 Saudi Pak Leasing Company Limited defaulted towards payment falling due in September 2010. Accordingly, the
exposure was classified as non-performing and provision was recognised in accordance with the SECP's
provisioning guidelines.

Subsequently, on the request of the Issuer, TFC holders approved the restructuring of the facility by extending
repayment period from 5 years to 9 years and by reducing mark-up rate to 6% for 24 months from restructuring
date and 8% for next 24 months and thereafter fixing the mark-up rate at 1 month KIBOR. Further, half of the
accrued mark-up is to be paid in cash and the balance is being deferred.

The Issuer defaulted again in the payment of principal and mark-up due on September 13, 2011. In accordance
with the requirements of Circular No. 33 of 2012 dated October 24, 2012 issued by the Securities Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP), the exposure has been classified as non-performing and no further mark-up is being
accrued after classification as non performing exposure. A provision of Rs. 5.550 million equivalent to 100% of the
amount outstanding has been made.

6.1.4 Worldcall Telecom Limited TFC's were classified by MUFAP as non-performing on November 8, 2012 after default of
instalment due on October 7, 2012 (earlier default on April 7, 2012) for the second time. A restructuring agreement
was signed on December 26, 2012. The restructuring included the extension of repayment period by 2 years,
deferral of principal instalments till October 7, 2014 and payment of regular mark-up during the restructuring
period. In accordance with Circular No. 33 of 2012 dated October 24, 2012, a provision of Rs. 47.767 million
equivalent to 100% of the amount outstanding has been made.
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6.1.5 These represent investments in privately placed Term Finance Certificates and Sukuk bonds of the investee
company. These investments have been fully provided.

6.1.6 The Term Finance Certificates and Sukuk bonds held by the Fund are generally secured against hypothecation of
stocks and receivables and mortgage / pledge of fixed assets of the issuer.

6.1.7 Installment amounting to Rs. 1.998 million became due for payment of the following TFCs / sukuks and are
reflected in note 8.

Agritech Limited 1,998 1,998
1,998 1,998
6.1.8 Significant terms and conditions of Term Finance Certificates and Sukuk bonds outstanding as at June 30, 2018 are
as follows:
Remaining
. principal Mark-up rate Issue Maturity
Name of security (per TFC) in (per annum) date date
Rupees
Term Finance Certificates - Listed
Saudi Pak Leasing Company Limited 2,775 6 Month KIBOR + 1.50% 13-Mar-08 13-Mar-13
World Call Telecom Limited 2,011 6 Month KIBOR + 1.60% 07-Oct-08 07-Oct-13
Term Finance Certificates and Sukuk
bonds - Unlisted
Agritech Limited 3,997 6 Month KIBOR + 1.75% 29-Nov-07 29-Nov-14
WAPDA - TFC 2,500 6 Month KIBOR + 1% 27-Sep-13 27-Sep-21
Ghani Gases Limited 79,167 3 Month KIBOR + 1% 02-Feb-17 02-Feb-23
JS Bank Limited 4,997 6 Month KIBOR + 1.40% 14-Dec-16 16-Dec-23
Bank of Punjab 99,940 6 Month KIBOR + 1% 23-Feb-16 23-Feb-26
6.2 Fair value through profit or loss - Held for trading

All Term Finance Certificates and Sukuk bonds have a face value of Rs. 5,000 each unless stated otherwise.

6.2.1 Term finance certificates - Listed
Number of certificates Market Market value as a
lue / percentage of
Name of the Sales] value .
Investee Company As at Purchases ales Asat  Carryingvalue
. Matured as at Total Net
July 1, during during the June 30, Investments Assets
2017 the year & 2018 lune 30,
year 2018
--------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------==nmemmeemenmaane
Commercial Banks
Bank Al Falah - 24,075 24,075 - - - -
Soneri Bank Limited - 31,100 4,000 27,100 136,041 11.14% 5.54%
MCB Bank Limited - 5,000 5,000 - - - -
- 60,175 33,075 27,100 136,041 11.14% 5.54%
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Market value as a

Number of certificates Market
percentage of
Name of the Sales] v?lue/ ;
Investee Company As at Purchases ales Asat  Carrying value
. Matured as at Total Net
July 1, during during the June 30, 30 Investments Assets
2017 the year g 2018 June 30,
year 2018
--------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------mz=-----=-
Chemicals
Dawood Hercules Chemical Limited
(note 6.2.3) * - 3,550 1,000 2,550 255,510 20.92% 10.40%
- 3,550 1,000 2,550 255,510 20.92% 10.40%
Total - 63,725 34,075 29,650 391,551 32.06% 15.94%
As at June 30, 2017 - - - - - - -
Cost of investments as at June 30, 2018 390,549
Cost of investments as at June 30, 2017 -
* These TFCs have face value of Rs. 100,000 per TFC.
6.2.2 Term finance certificates and sukuk bonds - Unlisted
Commercial Banks
Bank of Punjab * - 650 - 650 64,929 5.32% 2.64%
1S Bank Limited (note 6.2.3) - 21,150 18,000 3,150 15,725 1.29% 0.64%
JS Bank Limited - Sukuk (note 6.2.3)* - 2,000 - 2,000 199,960 16.37% 8.14%
Habib Bank Limited - 1,250 1,250 - - - -
Bank Al Habib limited - 37,988 37,988 - - - -
Askari Bank Limited - 10,000 10,000 - - - -
- 73,038 67,238 5,800 280,614 22.98% 11.42%
Investment Companies
Jahangir Siddiqui & Company Limited - 18,000 - 18,000 90,863 7.44% 3.70%
- 18,000 - 18,000 90,863 7.44% 3.70%
Technology and communication
TPL Corporation Limited * - 500 - 500 50,093 4.10% 2.04%
- 500 - 500 50,093 4.10% 2.04%
Total - 91,538 67,238 24,300 421,570 34.52% 17.16%
As at June 30, 2017 - - - - - - -
Cost of investments as at June 30, 2018 420,562
Cost of investments as at June 30, 2017 -
* These TFCs have face value of Rs. 100,000 per TFC.
6.2.3 Details of non-compliant investments with the investment limit specified by Regulation 55 sub regulation 5 of the NBFC
Regulations
Value of Provision Value of
Name of Non-Complaint Investment Type of Investment held Investment % of Net % of Gross
Investment before . after Assets Assets
. (if any) .
Provision Provision
---------------------- (Rupees in '000)---------=---------
Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited (note 6.2.4) Sukuk 255,510 - 255,510 10.40% 9.99%
JS Bank Limited (note 6.2.4) TFC 257,866 - 257,866 10.50% 10.08%
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6.2.4 The exposure limit in a single entity as a percentage of net assets exceeded by 0.4% and 0.5% against the prescribed
limit of 10% of the total net assets as required under the NBFC Regulations. The disclosure for breach of exposure
limit is made as required by the circular no. 16 of 2010 dated July 07, 2010 by SECP. Exposure limit exceeded the
prescribed limit of 10% due to reduction of fund size, subsequent to the purchase of investment.

6.2.5 Significant terms and conditions of Term Finance Certificates Sukuk bonds outstanding as at June 30, 2018 are as
follows:
Remaining
N . it prmcmal_ Mark-up rate Issue Maturity
ame ot securtty (per TFC) in (per annum) date date
Rupees
Term Finance Certificates - Listed
Soneri Bank Limited 4,995 6 Month KIBOR + 1.35% 08-Jul-15 08-Jul-23
Dawood Hercules Chemical Limited 100,000 3 Month KIBOR + 1% 16-Nov-17 16-Nov-22
Term Finance Certificates and Sukuk
bonds - Unlisted
Bank of Punjab 99,940 6 Month KIBOR + 1% 23-Feb-16 23-Feb-26
JS Bank Limited 4,997 6 Month KIBOR + 1.40% 14-Dec-16 16-Dec-23
JS Bank Limited - Sukuk 99,980 6 Month KIBOR + 1.40% 29-Dec-17 29-Dec-24
Jahangir Siddiqui & Company Limited 5,000 6 Month KIBOR + 1.40% 06-Mar-18 06-Mar-23
TPL Corporation Limited 100,000 3 Month KIBOR + 1.50% 19-Dec-17 19-Dec-19
6.3 Investment in Government Securities - Held-for-trading
Market value as a
Face value
percentage of
Sales/ Market
As at Purchases ales As at Value as at
. Matured Total Net
Issue Date Tenure July 1, during during the June 30, June 30, Investments Assets
2017 the year & 2018 2018
year
--------------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------===-=smmmmmmeeeaan
Treasury bill
August 3, 2017 6 months - 250,000 250,000 - - - -
October 26, 2017 3 months - 750,000 750,000 - - - -
November 9, 2017 3 months - 250,000 250,000 - - - -
November 23, 2017 3 months - 1,800,000 1,800,000 - - - -
December 7, 2017 3 months - 250,000 250,000 - - - -
January 4, 2018 3 months - 1,415,000 1,415,000 - - - -
January 11, 2018 3 months - 400,000 400,000 - - - -
February 1, 2018 3 months - 1,925,000 1,925,000 - - - -
February 15,2018 3 months - 2,750,000 2,750,000 - - - -
February 26, 2018 3 months - 450,000 450,000 - - - -
March 1, 2018 3 months - 500,000 500,000 - - - -
April 12,2018 3 months - 300,000 300,000 - - - -
June 7,2018 3 months - 600,000 600,000 - - - -
Total - as at June 30, 2018 - 11,640,000 11,640,000 - - - -
Total - as at June 30, 2017 1,239,500 3,600,000 4,839,500 - - - -
Government of Pakistan ljara 3 Years - 500,000 500,000 - - - -
Total - as at June 30, 2018 - 500,000 500,000 - - - -

Total - as at June 30, 2017 - - - - - B B
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Market value as a

Issue Date Tenure Face value
percentage of
Sales Market
As at Purchases ales As at Value as at
. Matured Total Net
July 1, during during the June 30, June 30, Investments Assets
2017 the year g 2018 2018
year
--------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------=-====nnnnmmmmmmnn
Pakistan Investment Bonds
July 19, 2012 10 Years - 50,000 50,000 - - - -
April 21,2016 5 Years - 50,000 50,000 - - - -
Total - as at June 30, 2018 - 100,000 100,000 - - - -
Total - as at June 30, 2017 1,085,000 7,325,000 8,410,000 - - - -
Grand total - 12,240,000 12,240,000 - - - -
As at June 30, 2017 2,324,500 10,925,000 13,249,500 - - - -
6.4 Quoted equity securities (spread transactions)
6.4.1 Listed equity securities
All equity shares have a par value of Rs. 10 each.
Number Carrying Market Unrealised Paid up value
of shares cost value as at appreciation/ Market Market of shares held
June 30, (diminution) on valueasa valueasa asa percentage
2018 re-measurement percentage percentage  of total paid
Name of the Investee Company .
As at of total of net up capital
June3o, (Rupees in '000) --------------- investments assets of the Investee
2018 ’ Company
Cement
Fauji Cement Company Limited 1,400,000 32,432 32,588 156 2.67% 1.33% 0.10%
32,432 32,588 156 2.67% 1.33% 0.10%
Cable & electrical goods
Pak Elektron Limited 798,500 28,215 28,350 135 2.32% 1.15% 0.16%
28,215 28,350 135 2.32% 1.15% 0.16%
Power generation & distribution
K-Electric Limited (Par value of Rs 3.5 1,990,000 10,717 10,768 51 0.88% 0.44% 0.01%
per share) 10,717 10,768 51 0.88% 0.44% 0.01%
As at June 30, 2018 71,364 71,706 342 5.87% 2.92% 0.27%
As at June 30, 2017 222,661 222,649 (12) 8.19% 4.96% 0.37%
6.4.2 The investment in equity securities represents spread transactions entered into by the Fund. The Fund purchases

equity securities in ready settlement market and sells the securities in future settlement market on the same day,
resulting in spread income due to difference in ready and future stock prices.

6.4.3 This includes unrealised mark-to-market gain on ready-buy-future sale transactions amounting to Rs. 0.098 million
(June 30, 2017: Rs.1.838 million).
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6.5 This represent commercial papers which were sold during the year and carried profit range from 7.46% to 7.91%
(June 30, 2017: 6.80% to 8.00%) per annum.
2018 2017
Note = (Rupees in '000)----------
6.6 Net unrealised (loss) / gain on re-measurement of
investments classified as available for sale
Market value of investments 6.1.1,6.1.2 336,779 1,471,124
Cost of investments 6.1.1,6.1.2 462,037 1,584,997
Provision against non-performing TFCs and Sukuks 6.8 (124,486) (124,486)
337,551 1,460,511
(772) 10,613
6.7 Net unrealized gain on re-measurement of investments carried at
fair value through profit or loss - held-for-trading
Market Value of investments 6.2.1,6.2.2,6.4 884,827 222,649
Cost of investments 6.2.1,6.2.2,6.4 (882,475) (222,661)
Unrealised gain / (loss) on revaluation of investments carried at 2,352 (12)
fair value through profit or loss - held-for-trading - net
6.8 Movement in provision against investments
Opening balance 126,484 126,484
Add: Charge for the year - -
Less: Reversals / write-offs - -
Net charge - -
Closing balance 126,484 126,484
Classified under investments 124,486 124,486
Classified under other receivables -
overdue installments of term finance certificates 1,998 1,998
126,484 126,484
7. ACCRUED MARK-UP
Mark-up accrued on savings accounts 8,212 11,185
Mark-up / return accrued on term finance
certificates and sukuk bonds 7.1 13,286 25,844
Mark-up accrued on placements 198 6,376
21,696 43,405
7.1 This includes Rs 2.381 million receivable from company under common directorship.
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2018 2017
Note = - (Rupees in '000)----------
8. ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Security deposit with National Clearing Company
of Pakistan Limited 46,831 183,843
Security deposit with Central Depository Company
of Pakistan Limited 100 100
Receivable against investments of term finance
certificates and sukuk bonds 6.1.7 1,998 1,998
Advance Tax 645 645
Dividend receivables - 3,466
Prepaid expenses 265 -
49,839 190,052
Less: Provision against overdue instalments of
Term finance certificates and Sukuk bonds 6.1.7 1,998 1,998
47,841 188,054
9. This represents receivables against sale of shares in future market.
10. PAYABLE TO MANAGEMENT COMPANY
Management fee 10.1 3,125 6,413
Sindh Sales Tax 10.2 408 960
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services 10.3 249 436
Sales load payable 617 526
4,399 8,335
10.1 Under the provisions of the Non-Banking Finance Companies & Notified Entities Regulations 2008, the

Management Company of the Fund is entitled to a remuneration during the first five years of the Fund, of an
amount not exceeding 3% of the average annual net assets of the Fund and thereafter of an amount equal to 2%
of such assets of the Fund. The Management Company has charged its remuneration at the rate of one and a half
percent per annum for the current year. Effective from January 15, 2018 the rate of the fee is revised through
ammendment in the Offering document of the Scheme at twelve and a half percentage of the gross earnings of the
scheme, calculated on a daily basis subject to a cap of 1.25% and a floor of 1.5% of the average daily net assets. The
fee is payable monthly in arrears.

10.2 The Sindh Provincial Government has levied Sindh Sales Tax (SST) at the rate of 13 percent (2017: 13 percent) on
the remuneration of management company through Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011.

10.3 Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan through its SRO 1160(1)/2016 dated November 25, 2015 has
revised the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulation, 2008. In the revised regulations a
new clause 60(3)(s) has been introduced allowing the management company to charge "fees and expense related
to registrar services, accounting, operation and valuation services related to CIS maximum upto 0.1% of average
annual net assets of the Scheme or actual whichever is less" from the mutual funds managed by it.

2018 2017
Note ~ —-—-——-- (Rupees in '000)----------
11. PAYABLE TO TRUSTEE
Trustee's remuneration 11.1 282 440
CDS charges payable 30 -
Sindh Sales Tax 11.2 37 58
349 498
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11.1 The Trustee is entitled to a monthly remuneration for services rendered to the Fund under the provisions of the
Trust Deed as per the tariff specified there in, based on the daily Net Asset Value (NAV) of the Fund.

Based on the Trust Deed, the tariff structure applicable to the Fund as at June 30, 2018 is as follows:

Amount of Funds Under Management (Average NAV) Tariff per annum

Up to Rs. 1,000 million Rs. 0.6 million or 0.17% per annum of
NAV, whichever is higher

Exceeding Rs. 1,000 million upto Rs. 5,000 million Rs. 1.7 million plus 0.085% per annum of
NAYV, exceeding Rs. 1,000 million
Exceeding Rs. 5,000 million Rs. 5.1 million plus 0.07% per annum of
NAYV, exceeding Rs. 5,000 million

The remuneration is paid to the trustee monthly in arrears.

11.2 The Sindh Government had levied Sindh Sales Tax at the rate of 13% (2017: 13%) on the remuneration of the
Central Depository Company of Pakistan through Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 effective from July 1, 2015.
2018 2017
Note = - (Rupees in '000)----------
12. PAYABLE TO SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE

COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN

Annual fee 12.1 2,742 4,291

12.1 Under the provisions of the Non Banking Finance Companies & Notified Entities Regulations, 2008, a collective
investment scheme categorised as income scheme is required to pay as annual fee to the SECP, an amount equal to
0.075% (2017: 0.075%) of the average annual net assets of the scheme. HBL Income Fund has been categorised as
an income scheme by the Management Company.

2018 2017
Note - (Rupees in '000)----------
13. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Auditors' remuneration 328 330
Brokerage payable 573 -
Federal Excise Duty payable 13.1 27,578 27,578
Other payables 297 281
Capital gain tax payable 352 2,352
Withholding tax payable 41 14,279
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 13.2 21,255 17,449

50,424 62,269

13.1

As per the requirement of the Finance Act, 2013, Federal Excise Duty (FED) at the rate of 16% on the remuneration.
The Sindh Provincial Government has levied Sindh Sales Tax (SST) on the remuneration of the Management
Company and sales load through Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act 2011 effective from July 1, 2011. During the year
SST at the rate of 13 percent (2017: 13 percent) was charged on the remuneration of Fund Manager and sales load.

While disposing the above petition through order dated July 16, 2016, the SHC declared the said provisions to be
ultra vires and as a result no FED is payable with effect from July 01, 2011. However, the tax authorities
subsequently filed appeal against the decision of the SHC in the Supreme Court of Pakistan, which is pending for the
decision.

The Finance Act, 2016 excluded the mutual funds from the levy of FED with effect from July 01, 2016. therefore, no
provision is charged during the year ending June 30, 2017.

However, since the appeal is pending in Supreme Court of Pakistan, the Management Company, as a matter of
abundant caution, has made a provision on FED on remuneration of Management Company, aggregating to Rs.
27.578 million. Had the provision not been made, the Net Asset Value per unit as at June 30, 2018 would have been
higher by Rs. 1.249 (June 30, 2017: Rs. 0.6511) per unit.
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13.2 The Finance Act 2008 introduced an amendment to the Workers' Welfare Fund Ordinance, 1971 (WWF Ordinance).
As a result of this amendment it may be construed that all Collective Investment Schemes (CISs) / mutual funds
whose income exceeds Rs. 0.5 million in a tax year, have been brought within the scope of the WWF Ordinance,
thus rendering them liable to pay contribution to WWF at the rate of two percent of their accounting or taxable
income, whichever is higher. In this regard, a constitutional petition has been filed by certain CISs through their
trustees in the Honorable High Court of Sindh, challenging the applicability of WWF to the CISs, which is pending
adjudication.

The Finance Act 2015 incorporated an amendment in WWF Ordinance by excluding CIS from the definition of
Industrial Establishment, and consequently CIS are no more liable to pay contribution to WWF with effect from July
1, 2015.

Subsequently, the Ministry of Labor and Manpower (the Ministry) vide its letter dated July 15, 2010 clarified that
“Mutual Fund(s) is a product which is being managed / sold by the Asset Management Companies which are liable
to contribute towards Workers Welfare Fund under Section 4 of the WWF Ordinance. However, the income on
Mutual Fund(s), the product being sold, is exempted under the law ibid”.

Further, the Secretary (Income Tax Policy) Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) issued a letter dated October 6, 2010 to
the Members (Domestic Operation) North and South FBR. In the letter, reference was made to the clarification
issued by the Ministry stating that mutual funds are a product and their income are exempted under the law ibid.
The Secretary (Income Tax Policy) Federal Board of Revenue directed that the Ministry’s letter may be circulated
amongst field formations for necessary action. Following the issuance of FBR Letter, show cause notice which had
been issued by taxation office to certain mutual funds for payment of levy under WWF were withdrawn. However,
the Secretary (Income Tax Policy) Federal Board of Revenue vide letter January 4, 2011 has cancelled ab-initio
clarificatory letter dated October 6, 2010 on applicability of WWF on mutual funds and issued show cause notices
to certain mutual funds for collecting WWF. In respect of such show cause notices, certain mutual funds have been
granted stay by Honorable High Court of Sindh on the basis of the pending constitutional petition in the said court
as referred above.

During the year ended June 30, 2013, the Larger Bench of the Sindh High Court (SHC) issued a judgment in response
to a petition in another similar case in which it is held that the amendments introduced in the WWF Ordinance
through Finance Acts, 2006 and 2008 do not suffer from any constitutional or legal infirmity.

During the year ended June 30, 2014, the Honorable Peshawar High Court on a petition filed by certain aggrieved
parties (other than the mutual funds) have adjudicated that the amendments introduced in the Workers Welfare
Fund Ordinance, 1971 through the Finance Acts of 1996 and 2009 lacks the essential mandate to be introduced and
passed through the money bill under the Constitution of Pakistan and hence have been declared as ultra vires the
Constitution.

The Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) passed a judgment on November 10, 2016, deciding that amendments made
through the Finance Acts through which WWF was levied are unlawful, as such are not in nature of tax; therefore,
it could not be introduced through the money bill. However, the Federal Board of Revenue has filed a review
petition in the SCP against the said judgment, which is pending for hearing in the SCP.

Further, the Government of Sindh also introduced levy of the Sindh Workers’ Welfare Fund (SWWF) through the
Sindh Workers” Welfare Act, 2014. The Mutual Fund Association of Pakistan, in the previous years based on opinion
obtained from the tax consultants, concluded that SWWF is not applicable on mutual funds. MUFAP also wrote to
the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) that mutual funds are not establishments and are pass through vehicles; therefore,
they do not have any worker and, as a result, no SWWF is payable by them. SRB responded back that as mutual
funds are included in definition of financial institutions in the Financial Institutions (Recovery of Finance)
Ordinance, 2001, and thus SWWF is payable by them. MUFAP has taken up the matter with the concerned ministry
[Sindh Finance Ministry] for appropriate resolution of the matter.

Considering the above developments, the Management Company assessed the position of the Fund with regard to
reversal of provision of WWF and recognition of provision of SWWF, and decided that:

- As an abundant caution, the Sindh Workers’ Welfare Fund (SWWF) should be recognized from July 01, 2014, and

- Provision computed for SWWF should be adjusted against provision of WWF, as the SCP declared WWF
unlawful. It was also decided that if any further provision is required, then it should be recognized in books of
the Fund. If provision of WWF is in excess of provision required for SWWF, the remaining provision of WWF
should be carried forward unless further clarification is received from the MUFAP.

As a result, the Management Company assessed that no further provision is required for SWWF and additional
provision of WWF should be carried forward till the matter is cleared.
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In the wake of the aforesaid developments, the MUFAP called its Extraordinary General Meeting (EOGM) on
January 11, 2017, wherein the MUFAP recommended to its members that effective from January 12, 2017,
Workers' Welfare Fund (WWF) recognised earlier should be reversed in light of the decision made by the Supreme
Court of Pakistan; and as an abundant caution, Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund (SWWF) should be recognized
effective from May 21, 2015.

MUFAP also communicated the above-mentioned decisions to the Securities and Exchange of Commission (SECP)
through its letter dated January 12, 2017, and the SECP through its letter dated February 01, 2017, advised that the
adjustment should be prospective and supported by adequate disclosures.

As a result of the above recommendations of the MUFAP, the Fund on January 12, 2017, reversed the provision of
WWF amounting to Rs. 28.170 million. Further, the Fund has recognised provision for SWWF.

As at June 30, 2018, the provision in relation to SWWF is amounting to Rs. 21.255 million in these financial
statements. Had the provision not been made, the net asset value per unit as at June 30, 2018 would have been
higher by Rs. 0.963 (2017: Rs. 0.412) per unit.

14. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
14.1 Contingencies

There are no contingencies outstanding as at June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017

2018 2017

14.2 Commitments

Future sell transactions of equity securities entered into by

the fund not settled as at year end 72,135 224,226
(Unit)
15. NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE
Total units in issue at the beginning of the year 42,355,455 63,397,299
Units issued 8,770,467 58,376,138
Units redeemed (29,053,116) (79,417,982)
Total units in issue at the end of the year 22,072,806 42,355,455

16. MARK-UP / RETURN ON INVESTMENTS
Term finance certificates - listed 26,295 515
Term finance certificates and sukuks - unlisted 69,050 79,818
Government securities 974 71,567
Commercial papers 8,170 1,064
104,489 152,964
17. MARK-UP ON DEPOSITS WITH BANKS
Mark-up on savings accounts 77,116 109,706
Mark-up on term deposit receipts 64,467 77,603
141,583 187,309
18. AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
Statutory audit fee 285 280
Half yearly review fee 55 55
Reporting on compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance - 5
Out of pocket expenses 56 -
396 340

Annual Report-2018 ] 89



HBL Income Fund

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

19. TAXATION

The Fund's income is exempt from Income Tax as per clause (99) of part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than 90% of the accounting income for the year as reduced
by capital gains whether realised or unrealised is distributed to the unit holders in cash. The Fund is also exempt
from the provisions of section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001. Subsequent to year end on July 4, 2018, Management Company has distributed cash dividend
of atleast 90 percent of the aforementioned accounting income to the unit holders. Accordingly, no provision for
taxation has been recognised in these financial statements.

20. EARNINGS PER UNIT

Earnings per unit (EPU) has not been disclosed as in the opinion of management determination of cumulative
weighted average number of outstanding units is not practicable.

21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
2018
At fair value .
through Loar:ns i?d Afvallallale Total
profit or loss receivables or sale
-------------- Rupees in '000 --------------
Assets
Bank balances - 1,242,036 - 1,242,036
Investments 884,827 - 336,779 1,221,606
Accrued mark-up - 21,696 - 21,696
Receivable against sale of investment - 24,984 - 24,984
Deposits and other receivables - 46,931 - 46,931
884,827 1,335,647 336,779 2,557,253
2018
At fair value Other
through financial Total
profit or loss liabilities
Labilites Rupees in '000 --------------
Payable to the Management Company - 4,399 4,399
Payable to the Trustee - 349 349
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 1,198 1,198
Payable against purchase of investment - 43,789 43,789
Unit holders' fund - 2,456,460 2,456,460
- 2,506,195 2,506,195
2017
At fair value .
through Loar_ms i?d A%vallatl)le Total
profit or loss receivables or sale
-------------- Rupees in '000 --------------
Assets
Bank balances - 881,829 - 881,829
Investments 222,649 1,025,104 1,471,124 2,718,877
Accrued mark-up - 43,405 - 43,405
Receivable against sale of investment - 733,524 - 733,524
Deposits and other receivables - 187,409 - 187,409

222,649 2,871,271 1,471,124 4,565,044
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22.

22.1

2017
At fair value Other
through financial Total
profit or loss liabilities

Liabilities

Payable to the Management Company - 8,335 8,335
Payable to the Trustee - 498 498
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 611 611

Payable against purchase of investment -

Unit holders' fund - 4,490,296 4,490,296

- 4,499,740 4,499,740

TRANSACTIONS WITH CONNECTED PERSONS / RELATED PARTIES

Connected persons include HBL Asset Management Limited being the Management Company, Habib Bank Limited
being the Sponsor, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of the Fund, other collective
investment schemes managed by the Management Company, directors and officers of the Management Company,
directors of connected persons and persons having 10% or more beneficial ownership of the units of the Fund.

Transactions with connected persons are in the normal course of business, at contracted rates and terms
determined in accordance with market rates.

Remuneration payable to Management Company and Trustee is determined in accordance with the provisions of
the NBFC Regulations and the Trust Deed respectively.

Details of the transactions with connected persons and balances with them, if not disclosed elsewhere in these
financial statements are as follows:

Transactions during the year

HBL Asset Management Limited - Management Company

Management fee 58,367 96,972
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,

accounting, operation and valuation services 3,656 5,719
Issue of 1,156,101 units (2017: Nil units) 125,000 -
Redemption of Nil units (2017: 377,025 units) - 40,513
Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor
Issue of Nil units (2017: 6,103,743 units) - 666,345
Redemption of 10,016,323 units (2017: Nil units) 1,100,000 -
Bank charges paid 32 81
Mark-up earned during the year 9,114 109,706
Mark-up received during the year 4,602 111,344
Sales of Term Finance Certificates 392,819 -
Purchase of Term Finance Certificates 123,676 -
CDC Trustee - HBL Islamic Income Fund
Sale of sukuk certificate 1,000 units (2017: Nil units) 100,000 -
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HBL Assets Management Limited Employees Provident Fund - Associated

Issue of 10,946 units (2017: Nil units) 1,200 -
Redemption of 10,946 units (2017: Nil units) 1,204 -

MCB FSL Trustee - HBL Financial Planning Fund Strategic
Allocation Plan - Associate

Issue of 2,313,255 units (2017: Nil units) 250,415 -
Redemption of 1,734,330 units (2017: Nil units) 190,080 -

Directors and Executives of the Management Company
and their relatives

Executives and their relatives

Issue of Nil units (2017: 2,008 units) - 213
Redemption of 1,887 units (2017: 321 units) 200,835 35
Dividend - 14

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Remuneration 4,472 6,050
Central Depository System charges 593 11
22.2 Balances outstanding as at year end

HBL Asset Management Limited - Management Company

Investment held in the Fund: 1,156,101 units (2017: Nil units) 128,661 -
Management fee payable 3,125 6,413
Sindh Sales tax 408 960
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,

accounting, operation and valuation services 249 5,719
Sales load payable 617 526

Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor

Investment held in the Fund: 9,489,918 units (2017: 19,506,241 units) 1,056,124 2,076,755
Bank balances 14,381 111,454
Investment in Term finance certificate - 271,569

MCB FSL Trustee - HBL Financial Planning Fund
Strategic Allocation Plan - Associate

Investment held in the Fund: 578,925 units (June 30, 2017: Nil units) 64,428 -

Executives and their relatives

Investment held in the Fund: 11,472 units (2017: 4,840 units) 1,278 515
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Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Remuneration payable 282 440

Sindh Sales tax 37 58

Security deposit 100 100

CDC charges payable 30 -
23. PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT COMMITTEE AND FUND MANAGER

Details of members of the investment committee of the Fund are as follow:

S.no. Name Designation Qualification Experience in years
1 Farid Ahmed Khan Chief Executive Officer MBA, CFA 25+ years
2 Muhammad Imran Chief Investment Officer MBA - Finance 18+ years
3 Faizan Saleem Head of Fixed Income MBA - Finance 10+ years
4 Noman Ameer Manager Risk MBA - Finance 11+ years
5 Sateesh Balani Head of Research MBA, CFA 7+ years
24. TOP BROKERS / DEALERS BY PERCENTAGE OF COMMISSION PAID

Top brokers during the year ended June 30, 2018

EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited
Multiline Securities (Private) Limited
Topline Securities Limited

Adam Securities (Private) Limited
AL Falah Securities (Private) Limited
JS Global Capital Limited
Intermarket Securities Limited

Arif Habib Limited

MRA Securities Limited

CoOoONOOTUEWNE

The Fund has entered into transactions with less than ten brokers during the year ended June 30, 2018.
Top brokers during the year ended June 30, 2017

Intermarket Securities Limited

JS Global Capital Limited

EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited

Topline Securities (Private) Limited

Al Falah Securities (Private) Limited
Ismail Igbal Securities (Private) Limited
Arif Habib Limited

Summit Capital (Private) Limited

BIPL Securities Limited

OLCONOOTULDEWN R

The Fund has entered into transactions with less than ten brokers during the year ended June 30, 2017.
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25. PATTERN OF UNIT HOLDING

-------------- As on June 30, 2018 --------------

Number of Investment Percentage

unit holders amount investment

-------------- Rupees in '000 --------------

Individuals 855 1,036,701 42.20%
Associated Company 1 128,661 5.24%
Bank / DFI 1 1,056,124 42.99%
Retirement funds 6 43,631 1.78%
Trust 5 67,606 2.75%
Others 7 123,737 5.04%
875 2,456,460 100.00%
-------------- As on June 30, 2017-----------—-—-

Number of Investment Percentage

unit holders amount investment

-------------- Rupees in '000 --------------
Individuals 1,151 2,190,671 48.79%
Bank / DFI 1 2,076,755 46.25%
Retirement funds 5 47,429 1.06%
Trust 9 114,985 2.56%
Others 5 60,456 1.35%
1,171 4,490,296 100.00%
26. ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

Five meetings of the Board of Directors were held on August 25, 2017, October 27, 2017, November 23, 2017,
February 26, 2018 and April 23, 2017 respectively. Information in respect of the attendance by the Directors in the
meetings is given below:

Number of meetings
S.No. Name of Director Held Attended Leave granted Meetings not attended

Mr. Agha Sher Shah'!
Mr. Farid Ahmed Khan
Ms. Ava A. Cowasjee
Mr. Rayomond H. Kotwal
Mr. Rizwan Haider
Mr. Shabbir Hussain Hashmi?
Mr. Shahid Ghaffar3
Mr. Nadeem Abdullah*
Mr.Towfiq Habib Chinoy?
0 Mr.Salahuddin Manzoor®

November 23,2017 & April 23,2018
October 27,2017

February 26,2018

RPLOONOOTUDWN -

WwWwhArNRPUTUTOUUON

WwhrRrRERPpPpUTWLWON
I'_\I'_\INI

Appointed on November 23, 2017
Appointed on February 26, 2018
Appointed on December 04, 2017
Resigned on February 26, 2018
Resigned on November 23, 2017
Resigned on November 30, 2017

AUV WN R

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Fund primarily invests in a portfolio of money market investments such as investment-grade debt securities,

government securities, spread transactions, margin financing and in other money market instruments. These
activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
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27.1 Market risk

This is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices.

The Management Company manages market risk by monitoring exposure on marketable securities by following the
internal risk management policies and investment guidelines approved by the Investment Committee and
regulations laid down by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Market risk comprises of three types of risk; currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.
27.1.1 Currency risk

This is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Fund, at present is not exposed to currency risk as its operations are geographically
restricted to Pakistan and all transactions are carried out in Pak Rupees.

27.1.2 Interest rate risk

This is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.

a) Fair value interest rate risk - variable rate instruments

As at June 30, 2018, the Fund holds KIBOR based interest bearing term finance certificates that expose the Fund
to fair value interest rate risk. In case of 100 basis points increase in KIBOR on June 30, 2018, with all other
variables held constant, the net assets of the Fund would have been higher by Rs. 11.5 (2017: Rs. 14.71) million
and net income of the Fund would have been higher by Rs.11.5 (2017: Rs. 14.71) million. In case of 100 basis
points decrease in KIBOR on June 30, 2018, with all other variables held constant, the net assets of the Fund
would have been lower by Rs. 11.5 (2017: Rs. 14.71) million and net income for the year would have been lower
by Rs. 11.5 (2017: Rs. 14.71) million.

b) Cash flow interest rate risk - variable rate instruments

The Fund's interest rate risk arises from the balances in savings accounts. The net income for the year would
have increased / (decreased) by Rs. 10.32 (2017: Rs. 8.82 million), had the interest rates on savings accounts
with banks increased / (decreased) by 100 basis points.

The composition of the Fund's investment portfolio, KIBOR rates and rates announced by Financial Market
Association is expected to change over time. Therefore, the sensitivity analysis prepared as of June 30, 2018 is not
necessarily indicative of the effect on the Fund's net assets and net income due to future movements in interest
rates.

Yield / Interest rate sensitivity position for on balance sheet financial instruments is based on the earlier of
contractual repricing or maturity date and for off-balance sheet instruments is based on the settlement date.
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2018

Exposed to Yield / Interest rate risk

Total Upto three More than More than Not exposed
months three months one year to Yield /
and upto one Interest rate
year risk
-------------- Rupees in '000 --------------
On-balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets
Bank balances 1,242,036 1,032,036 - - 210,000
Investments 1,221,606 - 813,121 336,779 71,706
Accrued mark-up 21,696 - - - 21,696
Deposits and other receivables 46,931 - - - 46,931
Receivable against sales of investment 24,984 - - - 24,984
2,557,253 1,032,036 813,121 336,779 375,317
Financial liabilities
Payable to Management Company 4,399 - - - 4,399
Payable to the Trustee 349 - - - 349
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,198 - - - 1,198
Payable against purchase of investment 43,789 - - - 43,789
Unit holders' fund 2,456,460 - - - 2,456,460
2,506,195 - - - 2,506,195
On-balance sheet gap 51,058 1,032,036 813,121 336,779 (2,130,878)
Off-balance sheet financial instruments - - - - -
Off-balance sheet gap - - - - -
2017
Exposed to Yield / Interest rate risk
Total Upto three More than More than Not exposed
months three months one year to Yield /
and upto one Interest rate
year risk
-------------- Rupees in '000 --------------
On-balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets
Bank balances 881,829 881,829 - - -
Investments 2,718,877 - - 1,471,124 1,247,753
Accrued mark-up 43,405 - - - 43,405
Deposits and other receivables 187,409 - - - 187,409
Receivable against sale of investment 733,524 - - - 733,524
4,565,044 881,829 - 1,471,124 2,212,091
Financial liabilities
Payable to Management Company 8,335 - - - 8,335
Payable to the Trustee 498 - - - 498
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 611 - - - 611
Payable against purchase of investment - - - - -
Unit holders' fund 4,490,296 - - - 4,490,296
4,499,740 - - - 4,499,740
On-balance sheet gap 65,304 881,829 - 1,471,124 (2,287,649)

Off-balance sheet financial instruments - - - - -
Off-balance sheet gap B - . . .
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27.1.3 Price Risk

This is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused
by factors specific to the individual financial instruments or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial
instruments traded in the market. The net assets as at June 30, 2018 would have increased / (decreased) by Rs. 11.5
(2017: Rs. 14.71) million, had the price of the investments in term finance certificates (TFCs) increased /
(decreased) by 1%.

27.2 Credit risk

The Fund is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when
they fall due. Credit risk arises from the inability of the counter party to fulfil their obligations. There is a possibility
of default by participants or failure of the financial markets / stock exchanges, the depositories, the settlements or
clearing system, etc.

The Fund's credit risk is primarily attributable to its investment in debt securities and government securities,
balances with banks and advances, deposits and other receivables. The credit risk of the Fund is limited as the
investments are made and balances are maintained with counter parties that are financial institutions with
reasonably high credit ratings. Risk attributable to investment in government securities is limited as these are
guaranteed by the Federal Government.

The Fund's policy is to enter into financial contracts in accordance with the internal risk management policies and
investment guidelines approved by the Investment Committee. In addition, the risk is managed through the
assignment of credit limits and by following strict credit evaluation criteria laid down by the Management
Company.

The analysis below summarises the credit quality of the Fund's financial assets as at June 30, 2018 and June 30,
2017:

Bank balances by rating category

Al+ (PACRA) 757,168 2,307,087
Al (PACRA) 8,187 -
A-1+ (JCR-VIS) 16,645 (1,425,265)
A-1 (JCR-VIS) 26 7
A-2 (JCR-VIS) 250,010 -
1,032,036 881,829

Term finance certificates by rating category

AAA - 271,569
A+ 533,753 231,642
A 15,992 116,150
AA 255,510 112,815
AA- 115,022 543,801
AA+ 90,863 -
1,011,140 1,275,977

The fund has also made investment in TFC of WAPDA having market value of Rs. 138.76 m. The mentioned TFC is
backed by the Government of Pakistan.

Term deposit receipts (TDR) 210,000 890,000
Commercial Paper - 135,104
Accrued mark-up 21,696 43,405
Advances, deposits and other receivables 47,841 188,054
Receivable against investment in shares 24,984 733,524
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The maximum exposure to credit risk before any credit enhancement as at June 30, 2018 is the carrying amount of
the financial assets.

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of
counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Fund’s total credit exposure. The
Fund’s portfolio of financial instruments is broadly diversified and transactions are entered into with diverse
credit-worthy counterparties thereby mitigating any significant concentrations of credit risk.

27.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to settle its obligation
in full as they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous.

The Fund is exposed to daily cash redemptions of units. The Management Company manages the liquidity risk by
monitoring maturities of financial assets and financial liabilities and investing a major portion of the Fund's assets
in highly liquid financial assets.

In order to manage the Fund's overall liquidity, the Fund may also withhold daily redemption requests in excess of
ten percent of the units in issue and such requests would be treated as redemption request qualifying for being
processed on the next business day. Such procedure would continue until the outstanding redemption requests
come down to a level below ten percent of the units then in issue. The Fund did not withhold any redemptions
during the year.

The table below analyses the Fund's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

2018
Over three
Total Upto three months and Over one
months year
upto one year
-------------- Rupees in '000 --------------
Financial liabilities
(excluding unit holder's fund)
Payable to Management Company 4,399 4,399 - -
Payable to the Trustee 349 349 - -
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,198 1,198 - -
Payable against purchase of investment 43,789 43,789 - -
49,735 49,735 - -
Unit holders' fund 2,456,460 2,456,460 - -
2017
Over three
Total Upto three months and Over one
months year
upto one year
-------------- Rupees in '000 --------------
Financial liabilities
(excluding unit holder's fund)
Payable to Management Company 8,335 8,335 - -
Payable to the Trustee 498 498 - -
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 611 611 - -
Payable against purchase of investment - - - -
9,444 9,444 - -
Unit holders' fund 4,490,296 4,490,296 - -
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28. UNITS HOLDERS' FUND RISK MANAGEMENT

The unit holders' fund is represented by the net assets attributable to unit holders / redeemable units. The amount
of net assets attributable to unit holders can change significantly on a daily basis as the Fund is subject to daily
issuance and redemptions at the discretion of unit holders. These unit holders of the Fund are entitled to
distributions and to payment of a proportionate share based on the Fund's net asset value per unit on the
redemption date. The relevant movements are shown on the statement of movement in unit holders' fund. Unit
holders fund risk management is carried out by the Management Company through following steps:

- Monitor the level of daily issuance and redemptions relative to the liquid assets and adjust the amount of
distributions the Fund pays to the unit holders;

- Redeem and issue units in accordance with the constitutive documents of the Fund. This includes the Fund's
ability to restrict redemptions; and

- The Fund Manager / Investment Committee members and the Chief Executive Officer of the Management
Company critically track the movement of ‘Assets under Management’. The Board of Directors is updated
regarding key performance indicators, e.g., yield and movement of NAV and total Fund size at the end of each
quarter.

The Fund has maintained and complied with the requirements of minimum fund size during the current year.
29. FAIR VALUE AND CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid or transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants and measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values
and the fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern without any intention or
requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets i.e. listed equity shares are based on the
quoted market prices at the close of trading on the reporting date. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Fund is current bid price.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 13, "Fair Value Measurement" requires the Fund to classify fair
value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

The Fund classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs
used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(level 1);

- Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2); and

- Fair value measurements using Inputs for assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e.
unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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June 30,2018
Carrying amount Fair Value
Other
financial
Available Held-for- Loansand assets/
for-sale  trading receivables liabilities  Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
On-balance sheet financial instruments Note (Rupees in '000)
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments
- Term Finance Certificates and Sukuk bonds 336,779 813,121 - - 1,149,900 - 1,149,900 - 1,149,900
- Investment in ready / future - spread transaction - 71,706 - - 71,706 71,706 - - 71,706
336,779 884,827 - - 1,221,606 71,706 1,149,900 - 1,221,606
Financial assets not measured at fair value 29.1
Bank balances - - 1,242,036 - 1,242,036
Accrued mark-up - - 21,696 - 21,696
Receivable against investment in shares - - 24,984 - 24,984
Deposits and other receivables - - 46,931 - 46,931
- - 1,335,647 - 1,335,647
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 29.1
Payable to Management Company - - - 4,399 4,399
Payable to Trustee - - - 349 349
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - - - 1,198 1,198
Payable against purchase of investment - - - 43,789 43,789
Unit holders' fund - - - 2,456,460 2,456,460
- - 2,506,195 2,506,195
June 30, 2017
Carrying amount Fair Value
Other
financial
Available  Held-for- Loansand assets/
for-sale  trading receivables liabilities Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
On-balance sheet financial instruments (Rupees in '000)
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments
- Term Finance Certificates and Sukuk bonds 1,471,124 - - - 1,471,124 - 1,471,124 - 1,471,124
- Investment in ready / future - spread transaction - - - 222,649 222,649 222,649 - - 222,649
1,471,124 - ~ 222,649 1,693,773 222,649 1,471,124 - 1,693,773
Financial assets not measured at fair value 29.1
Bank balances - - 881,829 - 881,829
Investments
- Term deposit receipts and commercial papers - - 1,025,104 - 1,025,104
Accrued mark-up - - 21,696 - 21,696
Deposits and other receivables - - 187,409 - 187,409
Receivable against investment in shares - - 733,524 - 733,524
- - 2,849,562 - 2,849,562
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 29.1
Payable to Management Company - - - 8,335 8,335
Payable to Trustee - - - 498 498
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - - - 611 611

Payable against purchase of investment -
Unit holders' fund -

4,490,296 4,490,296

4,499,740 4,499,740
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29.1 The Fund has not disclosed the fair values for these financial assets and financial liabilities, as these are either short
term in nature or reprice frequently. Therefore, their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value.

30. TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO

In accordance with the directive 23 of 2016 dated July 20, 2016 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan, the total expense ratio of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2018 is 2.16% (June 30, 2017: 2.12%)
which includes 0.38% (June 30, 2017: 0.35%) representing government levy and SECP fee.

31. DISCLOSURE UNDER CIRCULAR 16 OF 2010 ISSUED BY THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF
PAKISTAN - CATEGORISATION OF OPEN END SCHEME

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide Circular 7 of 2009 dated March 6, 2009 required all Asset
Management Companies to classify funds under their management on the basis of categorisation criteria laid down
in the circular. HBL Asset Management Limited (Management Company) classified HBL Income Fund (the Fund) as
Income Scheme' in accordance with the said circular. As at June 30, 2018, the Fund is compliant with all the
requirements of the said circular except for clause 9 (v) which requires that the rating of any security in the portfolio
shall not be lower than the investment grade.

Value of Provision Value of
. Type of Investment % of Net % of Gross
Name of Non-Complaint Investment held Investment
Investment before . - Assets Assets
.. (if any)  after Provision

Provision

--------------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------=-----mmrnnnmumeem
New Allied Electronics
Industries (Private) Limited TFC 19,025 19,025 - - -
New Allied Electronics
Industries (Private) Limited Sukuk 44,149 44,149 - - -
Agritech Limited TFC 9,992 9,992 - - -
Saudi Pak Leasing Company Limited TFC 5,550 5,550 - - -
Worldcall Telecom Limited TFC 47,768 47,768 - - -

32. NON ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER REPORTING DATE

The Board of Directors of the Management Company in its meeting held on July 4, 2018 has proposed a final cash
distribution upto Rs. 5.5 per unit amounting to Rs 107.94 million as cash dividend and Rs 13.46 as refund of capital.
The Financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2018 do not include the effect of the final
distribution which will be accounted for in the financial statements of the Fund for the year ending June 30, 2019.
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33. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Management Company in
their meeting held on August 31, 2018.

34. CORRESPONDING FIGURES
Corresponding figures have been rearranged or reclassified, where necessary, for the purpose of better
presentation. No significant rearrangement or reclassification was made in these financial statements during the
current year.

35. GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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NAME OF FUND IHBL Energy Fund

NAME OF TRUSTEE Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
NAME OF AUDITORS Deliotte Yousuf Adil Chartered Accountant
NAME OF BANKERS MCB Bank Limited

Habib Bank Limited

Soneri Bank Limited
JS Bank Limited
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FUND MANAGER’S REPORT —

HBL ENEGYY FUND
As at June 30, 2018

Type and Category of Fund

Equity / Open-end

Investment Objective and Accomplishment of Objective

HBL Energy Fund (HBL ENF) is an open end equity fund. The objective of the Fund is to capture significant return from an
actively managed portfolio by investing in listed equity securities of energy sector in Pakistan and in this respect the Fund has
achieved its objective.

Benchmark and Performance Comparison with Benchmark

The Fund’s benchmark is KSE-30 Total Return Index.

The Fund’s NAV decreased by -2.33%, outperforming the benchmark by 7.7% during FY18. A comparison of the funds’ returns
with the benchmark is given below:

Month Return of Fund Benchmark
June 2018 20.82% 1.58% VR Srrevgy Swdve Dvwnieirh
May 2018 -4.33% 5.86% | ‘wiFe P IPEI R e eeo,
April 2018 1.94% -1.41% e
March 2018 3.91% 6.10%
February 2018 -1.73% -1.19% i i
January 2018 4.96% 8.92%
December 2017 -2.18% 0.78% g
November 2017 -0.49% 1.38% ==
October 2017 -2.54% -6.20%
September 2017 2.49% 3.63% |
August 2017 -7.92% -11.63% = S = o= = & 2 = = = = =
July 2017 5.23% 1.70% = 7 & 2 18w 2 2 & § 3§

Strategies and Policies employed during the Year

During the year under review, the Fund decreased its exposure in equities marginally from 93.51% on June 30, 2017 t0 90.13%
on June 30, 2018. Further, sectors wise allocation was continuously reviewed and revisited throughout the year to ensure
optimum return to the investors. Accordingly, exposures in Oil and Gas exploration sector was increased while decreasing
exposure to Refineries, OQil and Gas marketing and Power Generation and Distribution.

Ainsnt Allocasion June #18 Adcead Aoz ation Jesss 2007
Canb /O
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Camarmiion b L ages,
[igiiatian 4EITH [T
b Jeserabon b
Diwiribudize
16 1I%
Ol & Gan
Martsimg E'I" ﬂ:’
Carganies "hriedng
32 a Corganmn

Significant Changes in Asset Allocation during the Year

The following table shows a comparison of top sector wise allocation of equity investments in the Fund as on June 30, 2018
and June 30, 2017:
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Fund Performance

The Fund earned and incurred a total income and net loss of Rs. 24.63 million and Rs. 9.15 million respectively during the year
ended June 30, 2018. The ex-dividend Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit of the Fund was Rs. 15.0359 per unit as on June 30, 2017.
The NAV of the Fund was Rs. 14.6857 per unit as on June 30, 2018, thereby giving a negative return of 2.33%. During the same
year the benchmark KSE 30 index yielded a negative return of 10.03%.The size of Fund was Rs. 1.06 billion as on June 30, 2018.

Market Review

Pakistan Equities witnessed a topsy-turvy ride during outgoing year with disappointing foreign flows (after MSCI upgrade),
political uncertainty following the ouster of ex-PM, macroeconomic challenges and ongoing speculation about the upcoming
general elections.

KSE100 Index shed by 4,654 points to close at 41,911 points, reflecting a decline of 10%. Despite market expectation of strong
foreign inflows following Pakistan’s inclusion in the MSCI Emerging Markets, foreign investors continued to remain net sellers
and sold stocks of worth USD289mn. Within local investors, insurance companies and corporates bought equities of
USD204mn and USD100mn respectively while Mutual funds divested equities of USD35mn during the year. On the political
front, Ex-Prime Minister Nawaz Sharif was disqualified by Supreme Court in Jul-17 which further marred investor sentiment.
Moreover, economic concerns increased due to rising twin deficits followed by stringent policy measures by policy makers
(16% PKR depreciation and 75bps increase in interest rates).

The Cement and Banking sector led the rout in the benchmark index, causing attrition of 2,288 points and 1,083 points
respectively. Decline in cements was caused owing to the fears of a price war in the segment as upcoming expansions could
lead to an oversupply situation particularly in the Southern region as can be grasped from price performance of DGKC and
LUCK which fell 44% and 37% YoY respectively. In the banking sector, large banks caused underperformance where HBL, UBL
and NBP fell 37%, 23% and 20% owing to regulatory concerns, pension and other legal issues. Meanwhile mid-tier banks
outperformed the index buoyed by rising interest rate environment which is expected to lead to margin expansion.

Oil & Gas Exploration and Production sector defied overall trend during FY18 and posted strong gains where the sector
contributed 1,628 points to the market owing to 66% increase in International Oil Prices and 16% PKR depreciation. The
outperformance was led by POL and PPL posting returns of 58% and 53% against SPLY.

Going forward, we expect Pakistan equities to rebound with restoration of political stability (after General Elections), gradual
improvement in macroeconomic trends and potential revival of foreign investor interest after steep PKR depreciation.
Moreover, we highlight that Pakistan market’s discount to emerging as well as frontier peers has increased to 30% and 28%
against 5-year averages of 25% and 19% respectively reflecting a good entry point.

Distribution

The Board of Directors approved NIL distribution to the unit holders for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Significant Changes in the State of Affairs

There were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Fund.

Breakdown of Unit Holding by Size

From — To No. of Unit Holders Total No. of Units Held
(No. of units)

1-100 68 1,022

101 - 500 31 7,693

501 — 1,000 3,204 2,530,508
100,1 — 10,000 1,201 3,791,512
10,001 - 100,000 239 7,197,593
100,001 - 500,000 46 10,188,890
500,001 - 1,000,000 7 4,769,254
1,000,001 - 5,000,000 8 16,131,772
5,000,001 and above 2 27,631,142
Total 4,806 72,249,386
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Unit Splits

There were no unit splits during the year.

Circumstances materially affecting the Interest of Unit Holders
Investments are subject to market risk.

Soft Commission

The Management Company from time to time receives research reports and presentations from brokerage houses.
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PERFORMANCE TABLE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Net assets at the period end(Rs'000) 1,061,029 794,794 954,214 1,059,614 1,498,769 1,409,682
NET ASSETS VALUE PER UNIT AT 30 JUNE - RUPEES
Redemption 14.6857 15.0359 12.0122 12.3654 11.4299 12.0356
Offer 15.0176 15.3757 12.3726 12.7364 11.7728 12.3967
OFFER / REDEMPTION DURING THE PERIOD - RUPEES
Highest offer price per unit 16.6501 18.4426 12.9758 13.0506 16.0101 14.4404
Highest offer price per unit 14.018 12.4268 10.7407 10.8197 11.6867 12.3967
Highest redemption price per unit 16.2821 18.0350 12.5979 12.6705 15.5438 14.0198
Lowest redemption price per unit 13.7082 12.0649 10.4279 10.5046 11.3463 12.0356
RETURN (%)
Total return -2.33% 30.12% -2.86% 8.18% 23.92% 52.28%
Income distribution 0.00% 0.60% 0.00% 0.00% 3.45% 2.05%
Capital growth -2.33% 29.52% -2.86% 8.18% 20.47% 50.23%
DISTRIBUTION
Final dividend distributation (Rs) 0 0.60 - - 3.45 2.05
Date of Income Distribution 0 20-Jun-17
Total dividend distribution for the year/ period (Rs) 0 0.60 - - 3.45 2.05
AVERAGE RETURNS (% )
Average annual return 1 year -2.33% 30.12% -2.86% 8.18% 23.92% 52.28%
Average annual return 2 year 12.73% 12.43% 2.52% 15.78% 38.10% 29.03%
Average annual return 3 year 7.28% 11.00% 9.20% 26.84% 28.51% 29.71%
PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION - (%)
Percentage of Total Assets as at 30 June:
Bank Balances 9% 6% 8% 5% 8% 7%
Stock / Equities 90% 94% 92% 93% 81% 93%
Others Including receivables 1% - - 2% 11% -

Note:
- The Launch date of the Fund is January 2006
- PICIC energy fund converted from closed end scheme to open end scheme effective from June 25, 2013

Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and unit prices and investment returns may go down, as well as up.
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PROXY VOTING DISCLOSURE

Summary of Actual Proxy voted by CIS

HBL Energy Fund Meetings Resolutions For Against
Number 1 6 6 -
(%ages) 100% 100% -

(h)  AMC did not participate in shareholders' meetings

Investee Company AGM Meeting Dt EOGM Meeting Dt
Attock Petroleum Ltd 19-10-2017 3-1-20